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Independent Auditors’ Report

O To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
. City of Herrin, illinois

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Herrin, Illinois (the City) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2023, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Herrin, lilinois, as of April 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Kebcpa.com




Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standardswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered materiat if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
proceduresinclude examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed, ' .

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.,

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.




Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
budgetary comparison information on pages 89 through 98 and the retirement pians schedules of
changes in net pension liability and related ratios, and schedules of contributions on pages 83
through 88 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. Our opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this
missing information.

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Herrin, Illinois basic financial statements. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for the purpose of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Consolidated year-end financial
report (CYEFR) is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by the illinois Grant
Accountability and Transparency Act (GATA) and is not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and year-end financial report
(CYFER) are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and consolidated year-end financial report
(CYEFR) are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Reguired by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
20, 2023 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standardsin considering
the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Aoden Ecke ¥ Grasehel, LLP

Marion, tllinois
November 20, 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Herrin, lllinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Herrin, Illinois, as of and for the year
ended April 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City of Herrin, lllinois’ basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November
20, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Herrin,
Illinois’ internal control over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Herrin,
ltlinois’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Herrin, Illinois’ internal control,

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, ininternal control such that thereis a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and correctedon a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described inthe first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2023-01 through
2023-02 that we consider to be material weaknesses.

kebcpa.com




Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Herrin, Illinois’ financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Herrin, [llinois’ Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on City of Herrin,
lllinois’ response to the findings identified in our audit as described in the schedule of findings and
responses. City of Herrin, Illinois’ response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Koo Cele 4 Brasdad LLP

Marion, Illinois
November 20, 2023




City of Herrin, [llinois
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

Finding Number 2023-01 - repeat

Criteria
Audit Journal Entries and Year-end Close

Condition and Context

Errors noted in the year end balances indicate issues with the year-end close process.

Cause

The City contracts with a firm to assist with the year-end close process. During the fiscal year a few
infrequent occurrences were not recorded properly by management and were not corrected by the
contracted firm. Some of those infrequent occurrences included adoption of a new accounting
standard for recording leases, deferral of a large amount of grant funds not yet expended for their
purpose, and the sale of a lake property with the funds used to purchase certificates of deposit.

Effect

As aresult, there was a total of 10 audit journal entries and two prior period adjustments related to the
new accounting standard.

Recommendation

We recommend management formally document year-end financial closing procedures. This would
include developing a list that identifies specific asset and liability accounts which needs to be reviewed
and reconciled to supporting documentation. Maintaining appropriate workpapers that documents
and references the conversion process provides a clear trail of the work performed. This would allow a
member of management to review the work in an efficient manner. In addition, changes in key
personnel due to turnover or extended periods of absence would not significantly impact the
conversion process,

Management Response

The City acknowledges that additional audit and client journal entries were necessary during the FY
2023 audit process. Management recognizes that the land sale and subsequent purchase of certificates
of deposit was not properly recorded. They also had not made changes to the accounting for leases to
comply with the new accounting standard.

10




City of Herrin, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the fiscal year ended April 30,2023

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES
Finding Number 2023-01 - repeat

Management Response

There were also adjustments to record transactions related to capital asset purchases, construction
and the associated depreciation as well as adjustments to accounts receivable and accounts payable.
Management will continue to work with their contracted CPA firm to further reduce errorsin their year-
end closing process.

Offici nsi ing the Corrective Action Plan js implemented
Carl Goodwin, Treasurer

Planned Completion Date for the Corrective Action Plan

Recommendations are considered at the issuance of the report and it is planned the correction be
implemented for the next fiscal year end April 30, 2024.

Finding Number 2023-02-repeat

Criteria

Segregation of Duties

Condition and Context

During the audit, we noted segregation of duties in some of the key financial processes:

» Anindividual in the Treasurer’s office is responsible for preparing the bank reconciliations and
is also involved in preparing accounts payable, recording invoices, and printing checks.

* An individual in the Treasurer’s office responsible for recording vendor invoices and printing
checks, also maintains the vendor master file.

¢ An individual in the Treasurer’s office responsible for maintaining the employee master file is
also involved in processing payroll and printing payroll checks.

Due to limited staff at the City, separating the incompatible duties may not be possible or cost effective.

11




City of Herrin, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For the fiscal year ended April 30,2023

ATERIAL WEAKNESSE

Finding Number 2023-02 - repeat

Cause

Limited staffing available to better segregate duties.

Effect

Segregation of duties is a key control in the accounting system. Allowing one individual to perform too
many steps in an accounting process could enable an individual to commit and conceal a fraudulent
act.

Recommendatio

While separating the incompatible duties may not always be possibie, we recommend that the City take
any steps to better separate the above segregation of duties issues, In addition, we recommend the
City periodically review theirinternal controls over processing procedures and staffing assignments for
any potential incompatible duties or other internal control weakness.

Management Response

The City of Herrin continues to strive to improve its internal controls. It will take any steps possible to
better separate incompatible duties. The City does contract with a third party certified public
accountant who provides additicnal oversight and review of the financial statements and therefore
mitigates some of the risk related to the incompatible duties outlined above. In addition, the treasurer
reviews all bank reconciliations.

Official onsi i ive Action Plan is implemented
Carl Goodwin, Treasurer

Planned Completion Date for the Corrective Action Plan

Recommendations are considered at the issuance of the report, however due to the limited staffing,
these recommendations may not be able to be implemented.

12




City of Herrin, linois
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2023
Primary Government Component Units
Governmental
Actlvities Total Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 5 4,283 876 6,360,625 H 355,945
Investments 1,205,260 1,205,260 483,258
Receivables
Property taxes 1,264,003 1,264,003 237,700
Other governments and agencies 1,292,981 1,292,981 -
Consumers 137,192 664,241 -
Lease receivable 655,340 757,427 -
internal balance 488,938 - -
Restricted assets
Cash and ¢cash equivalents 6,962,002 7,370,529 -
Receivables: other povernments and agencies 43,884 43,884 -
Total current assets 16,333,476 18,358,950 1,076,903
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets not being depreciated 84,907 124,307 -
Capital assets being depreciated, net 7,124,901 24,998,448 735,825
Total noncurrent assets 7,205,808 25,123,355 735,825
Total assets 23,543,284 44,082,305 1,812,728
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQOURCES
Deferred outflows - IMRF regular 958,538 1,493,797 65,777
Deferred outflows - IMRF SLEP 52,621 52,621 -
Deferred cutflows - Firefighter's Pension © 2,023,199 2,023,199 -
Deferred outflows - Police Pension 2,444,503 2,444,903 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 5,479,261 6,014,520 65,777
Total assets & deferred cutflows of resources $ 29,022 545 50,096,825 $ 1,878,505

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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i : Clty of Herrin, Ilinois
[ STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - CONTINVED
April 30, 2023
: Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total Total
LIABILITES
CURRENT LIABILITEES
Accounts payable 5 557,088 5 111,136 5 668,224 S 13,082
Accrued expenses 78,450 15,094 93,544 3,705
Generat obligation bonds, cutrent portion 1,629,501 - 1,629,501 -
Notes payable, current portion 15,528 - 15,528 -
Leases, current portion 27,299 44,347 71,646 -
Accrued interest 406,632 - 406,632 -
Deferred revenue 1,691,516 - 1,691,516 -
Consumer deposits - 399,904 399,904 -
Total current liabilities 4,406,014 570,481 4,976,495 16,787
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
General obligation bonds 27,524,347 - 21,524,347 -
Notes payahle 190,318 - 190,318 -
Leases 169,850 39,293 209,143 -
Compensated absences 841,954 228,262 1,070,216 -
Net pension liability - IMRF 1,384,713 773,239 2,157,952 95,021
Net pension liability - IMRF SLEP 70,159 - 74,159 -
Net pension liability - Fireflghter's Pension 1,199,069 - 1,199,069 -
Net pension liability - Police Pension 1,381,851 - 1,381,851 -
Total noncurrent lfabilities 32,762,261 1,040,794 33,803,055 95,021
Total liabilities 37,168,275 1,611,275 38,779,550 111,808
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - Leases 560,901 82,705 643,606 -
Deferred inflows - IMRF regular 252,872 141,206 394,078 17,353
Deferred inflows - IMRF 5LEP - - - -
Deferred inflows - Firefighter's Pension 975,565 ' - 975,565 -
Deferred inflows - Pollce Pension 495,055 - 495,055 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,284,393 223,911 2,508,304 17,353
Total liabilities and deferred Inflows of resources $ 39,452,668 $ 1,835,186 $ 41,287,854 $ 129,161
NET POSITION
Net investrent in capital assets § 1,821,736 5 17,789,907 § 19,611,643 5 735,825
Restricted for
Debt service 847,388 - 847,388 -
Maintenance of roadways 1,140,178 - 1,140,178 -
Economic development 2,870,861 - : 2,870,861 -
Other povernmental purpose 9,715 - 9,715 -
Unrestricted {deficit) (17,120,001} 1,449,187 (15,670,814} 1,013,519
Total net position $  (10,430,123) § 19,239,094 § 8,808,971 $ 1,749,344

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, Hlinols
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the fiscal yearended April 30, 2023

Net {Expense) Revenue and

Pragram Reventes Changesin Net Pasition
Service Charges, Operating Primary Govarnment
Permits, and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses fees Contributions Activitises Activities Total Units
Primary government
Governmental activitles
General govemnment $ (2,430,844} 3 402,661 $ - $  (2,028183) $ - $  (2,028,183) 5 -
Public safety {4,463,588) 220,043 168,000 (3,975,543) - (3,975,543} -
Transportation and public works (2,544,780} 1,283,324 2,500 (1,258,956) - {1,258,856) -
Cammu nity development (2,330,615) - 435,791 {1,824,824) - {1,894,824) -
Interest on long-term debt (1,077,724) - - {1,077,724) (3,451) 1,081,175} -
Totat governmental activities {12,847,549) 2,006,028 606,291 (20,235,230) {3,451) (10,238,681} -
Business-type activities
Water (2,911,284) 2,815,234 - - {96,050 {95,050} -
Solid waste {1,391,908) 1,576,600 - - 184,699 184,693 -
Total business-type activities (4,303,185) 4,391,834 - - 88,649 88,649 -
Total primary government $ (17,150,734) 3 6,397,862 $ 605,291 {10,235,230) 85,198 (10,150,032} -
Component unit
Public Eibrary $ (375,063) 3 8,068 $ 14,503 . N - (352,492}
Civic Center {220,134 130,417 3,024 - - - {96,633}
Total component unit $  {595,197) 5 128,545 3 17,527 - - - (449,125}
Generat Revenues
Toxes
Property tax 5,301,820 - 5,301,830 236,807
Sales tax 2,118,801 - 2,118,801 -
Gaming tax 329,059 - 329,05¢ -
Herne rule tax 1,941,711 - 1,941,711 142,327
Gas tax 214,565 - 214,565 -
income tax 1,925,018 - 1,925,018 -
Replacementtax 231,190 - 231,180 600
Telecemmunlcatlons tax 101,641 - 10%,641 -
Use tax 506,502 - 506,502 -
Auto rental tax 29 - 29 -
Cannabis tax 19,032 - 19,032 -
i Forelgn fire tax 4] 867 - 41,957 -
’ Mator fuef tax 696,605 - 696,605 -
Investment earnings 88,310 44,168 132478 5,906
Miscelianeous Income 1,293,569 - 1,293,566 70,562
Interfund transfers T23,600 {723,600} - -
Total general revenues, Intergovernmental
revenue and transfers 15,533,819 (679,432} 14,854,387 456,202
Change in net position 5,208,589 (594,234} 4,704,355 7,077
Met position, bepinning of year - as odginatly stated {15,821,499) 19,815,401 3,993,902 1,742,267
Prior perlod adjustment 9,787 17,927 110,714 -
Net position, beginning of year - as restated (15,728,712} 19,833,328 4,104,616 1,742,267
Met position, end of year $ (10,430,123} $ 19,239,084 S5 8,808,971 § 1,749,344
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, lllinois

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Aprlt 3D, 2023
Tax Grant Other Total
Increment Projects Governmental Governmantal
L Fund #1 Fund Funds Fupds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § 4,283,876 $ - S - $ - $ 4,283,876
Recelvables
Property taxes 1,264,003 - - - 1,264,003
Fees recelvable from consumers 137,192 - - - 137,192
Other governments and agencies £,292,98F - - - 1,292,981
Dute from ather funds 90,786 - - - 90,785
Investments 1,205,260 - - - 1,205,260
Lease receivable 655,340 - - - 655,340
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,428,923 1,702,086 3,830,993 6,962,002
Recelvahles
Other governments and agencles - - - 43,884 43,884
Due from other funds . 427,152 - - 421,152
Total assets 8,929,438 1,856,075 1,702,086 3,874,877 16,362,476
DEFERRED OUTHLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred qutilows - - - - -
Total deferred autflows of resources - - - - -
Total assets & deferred outllows of resources 4 8,929,438 % 1,856,075 $ 1,702,086 $ 3,874,877 $ 16,362,476
LIABILITES AND FUND BALANCE
Efabilitles
Accounts payabte $ 119,340 § 255475 $ 8,665 $ 173,608 $ 557,088
Accrued expenses 18,450 - - - 78,450
Accrued interest - - - 406,632 406,632
Deferred revenue - - 1,691,516 - 1,691,516
Due to other funds - - - 25,000 29,000
Taotai liabilities 197,790 255,475 1,700,181 609,240 2,762,686
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - Property taxes 1,264,003 - - - 1,264,003
Deferred inflows - Leases 560,501 - - - 560,901
Total deferred inftows of resources 1,824,504 - - - 1,824,904
Fund balance
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted - 1,600,600 1,305 3,265,637 4,868,142
Committed - - - - -
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned 6,906,744 - - - 6,906,744
Total fund balances 6,906,744 1,600,600 1905 3,265,637 11,774,886
Totat liabilities, delerred Inflows of resaurces,
and fund balances § 8929438 $ 1,856,075 $ 1,702,086 $ 3874877 $ 16362476

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, Hlinois

S RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2023

Total fund balances for governmental funds $§ 11,774,386

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds, Those
assets consist of;

Land 84,907
Buildings, net of 53,673,194 accumulated depreciation 228,603
Building improvements, net of $166,044 accumulated depreciation 125,340
tmprovements other than buildings, net of $156,172 accumulated depreciation 106,375
Equipment, net of $4,976,763 accumulated depreciation 1,154,409
infrastructure, net of $2,698,604 accumulated depreciation 5,336,549
Right-of-use asset, net of §57,870 accumulated amortization 173,625
Total capital assets 7,209,808

Other long-term assets which are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,264,003

Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are applicable
to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental fund balance sheet. 3,755,769

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities

are not due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not
reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long-term, are
reported in the statement of net position. Long-term liabilities consist of:

GOB bonds payable (29,075,000)
Finance leases {197,149)
Notes payable {205,346}
Bond premium {350,077}
Bond discount 271,229
Compensated absences (841,954}
Net pension liability {4,035,792)
Total long-term liabilities - {34,434,589)
Total net position of governmental activities § {10,430,123)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, Hlinois

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES !N FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

REVENUES
Property tax
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses, & perrnits
Fines and fees
Charges for services
Interest Income
Miscellaneoaus income

Totalrevenues

EXPENDITURES
General government and administrative
Public safety
Transportation and public works
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt Service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess [Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Issuance of bonds
Bonds issuance costs
Premium an bond issuance
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total ether linancing sources (uses)

HET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS ORIGIRALLY STATED

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

Grant Other Total
Projects Governmental Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
$ 2,391,637 - $ 612,365 $ 4,664,912
7,555,948 - 1,174,363 8,730,311
298,373 - - 298,373
302,791 - - 302,791
1,329,543 - - 1,329,543
34,871 1,905 22,537 88,310
1,329,575 41,815 - 1,371,390
13,242,138 43,720 1,808,265 16,785,630
2,442,997 30 178 2,443,155
4,857,946 - 32,943 4,890,88%
1,787,430 41,785 367,096 2,196,311
- - 725,037 2,330,615
470,231 - - 470,231
65,315 - 1,340,000 1,405,315
15,153 - 1,062,571 1,077,124
9,639,022 41,815 3,527,825 14,814,240
3,603,116 1,906 {1,718,560) 1,971,390
138,626 - 2,483,364 3,221,990
(2,467,764} - {30,626) {2,498,390}
{1,729,139) - 2,452,738 723,600
1,873,978 1,905 734,178 2,694,990
4,964,979 {25,000} 2,531,459 8,987,109
67,187 25,000 - 92,187
5,032,766 - 2,531,459 9,079,896
$ 6,906,744 1,905 $ 3,265,637 $ 11,774,886
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City of Herrin, IHinois

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the fiscal year ended April 30,2023

Net change In fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,694,990

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the statement

of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported

as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays ($639,371) exceeded

depreciation ${512,141) in the current period. 127,230

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:
Change in compensated absences {55,703)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar

items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amountis the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Repayment on long-term debt _ 1,405,315

Amaortization of discount on bonds (7,534)

Amortization bond premium 54,569

Acquisition of right-of-use assets through leases (169,140)

1,283,210

The net effect of the change in deferred revenues. Revenues in the statement
of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported in
the funds. 636,308
Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However
in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits earned net of employee
contributions is reported as pension expense. 611,954

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 5,298,589

See accompanying hotes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, I{linois
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30,2023
i Buslness-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Water Sewer
o Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,235,902 $ 840,847 $ 2,076,749
Accounts receivable
Consumers 330,076 196,973 527,049
Lease receivable 102,087 - 102,087
Due from other funds - 112,543 112,543
Restricted assets
Cash 408,527 - 408,527
Total current assets 2,076,592 1,150,363 3,226,955
: NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets not being depreciated 40,000 - 40,000
Capital assets being depreciated, net 7,353,253 10,520,294 17,873,547
Total noncurrent assets 7,393,253 10,520,294 17,513,547
Total assets 9,469,845 11,670,657 21,140,502
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - IMRF regular 384,089 151,170 535,259
Total deferred outflows of resources 384,089 151,170 535,259
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 5 9,853,934 $ 11,821,827 $ 21,675,761
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 81,637 $ 29,499 $ 111,136
Accrued expenses 11,054 4,040 15,094
Current portion of leases 44,347 - 44,347
Dueto other funds 203,329 398,152 601,481
Consumer deposits 399,904 - ' 399,904
Total current labilities 740,271 431,691 1,171,962
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Leases, noncurrent portion 39,293 - 39,293
Compensated absences 102,432 125,830 228,262
. Net pension [lability 554,858 218,381 773,239
Total noncurrent liabilitles 696,583 344,211 1,040,794
Total liabilities 1,436,854 775,902 2,212,756
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - Leases 82,705 - 82,705
Deferred inflows - IMRF regular 101,326 39,800 141,206
Total deferred inflows of resources - 184,031 39,800 223,911
Total liabilities and deferred Inflows or resources $ 1,620,885 $ 815,782 S 2,436,667
NET POSITION
Netinvestment in capital assets $ 7,269,613 § 10,520,224 S 17,789,907
Unrestricted 963,436 485,751 1,449,187
Total net position $ 8,233,049 $ 11,006,045 $ 19,239,094
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, lllinois

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

f For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

e Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
{ Water Scwer
Fund Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 2,815,234 $ 1,576,600 $ 4,391,834
Total operating revenues 2,815,234 1,576,600 4,391,834

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries 831,738 336,383 1,168,131

Employee benefits 223,561 145,809 369,370

Purchase of water 1,000,166 - 1,000,166

‘Audit 14,600 - 14,600

Utilities . 18,461 102,476 120,937

iR Postage 39,636 - 39,636
Insurance 64,514 32,930 97,444

Health insurance claims 122,582 - 122,582

Office supplies 5,707 - 5,707

Legal and engineering 8,978 11,517 20,495

Permits - 17,500 17,500

Supplies 137,588 53,423 181,011

Clothing allowance 11,948 4,972 16,920

Other 68,639 37,249 105,888

Repair and maintenance 1,997 245,787 247,784

Depreciation 361,169 403,845 765,014

Total operating expenses 2,911,284 1,391,901 4,303,185

. Operating income (loss) {96,050} 184,699 88,645

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES}

Interest income 30,781 13,387 44,168
Interest expense {3,451} - (3,451}
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 27,330 13,387 40,717
TRANSFERS
Transfer in - - -
Transfer out (253,200) {470,400) {723,600}
Total transfers in {out) (253,200) {470,400) (723,600}
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (321,920} {272,314) (594,234}
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS ORIGINALLY STATED 8,537,042 11,278,359 19,815,401
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 17,927 - 17,927
KET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 8,554,969 11,278,359 19,833,328
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR § 8,233,049 $ 11,006,045 $ 19,239,094

5 See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Herrin, lllincis

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended April 31, 2023

Business-type Activities - Enierprise Funds

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 2,768,583 § 1,553,664 5 4,322,247
Receipts from leases and interest 5,746 - 5,746
Payments to suppllers (1,496,543) (584,938} {2,071,583}
Payments to employees (1,058,862} (463,475} {1,522,337}
Netcash provided by operating actlvities 228,824 505,251 734,015
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to other funds {253,200) {470,400} {723,600}
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities {253,200) {470,400} {723,600}
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capltal assets - - -
Principal payments on capital leases (43,000) - {43,090}
Interest and agent feespaid  ~ {3,451) - {3,451}
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (46,541) - (46,541}
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income 30,781 13,387 44,168
Net cash provided by investing activities 30,781 13,387 44,168
Hetchangein cash (40,136) 48,238 8,102
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,684,565 792,609 2,477,174
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 1,644,429 3 840,847 3 2,485,276
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income ({oss) § {96,050} § 1B4,699 H 88,649
Adjustments to reconcite operating Income {loss)
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amoitization 361,169 403,845 765,014
Changes In assets and llabilitles
Accotnts receivable (46,651} {22,936} {69,587)
Accounts payable {2,961} 12,416 9,455
Accrued safaries 10,565 13,342 23,507
Deposits payable 11,134 - 11,134
Due from other funds - - -
Due to other funds - {91,500) {91,500}
Deferred outflows of resources (203,214) (85,764) (288,978)
Deferred Inflows of resources {715,744} (262,252) [977,996)
Lease recejvable 5,746 - 5,746
Net pensfon asset 349,972 135,020 484,952
Net penston liability 554,858 218,381 773,239
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 228,824 3 505,251 3 134,075
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivatents 5 1,235,902 H 840,847 5 2,076,749
Restricted cash 408,527 - 408,527
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 1,644,429 $ 840,847 § 2,485,276

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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| City of Herrin, Illinois
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
April 30, 2023
Pension
Trust Funds
ASSETS.
. Cash $ 1,193,245
Receivables
Praperty taxes -
Employee contributions receivable 4,950
: Accrued interest -
Total receivables 4,950
Investments, at fair value
flinois Police Officers Pension Investments Funds, pooled ) 26,471,868
illinols Firefighters Pension Investment Funds, pooled 18,751,208
Total investments 45,223,076
Total assets 46,421,271
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outfiows -
Total deferred outflows of resources -
LIABILITIES
Federal witholding 3,468
Due to City of Herrin 164
Total liabilities 3,632
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - property taxes -
Total deferred inflows of resources -
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 46,417,639

See accompanying notes to financial statement.
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; City of Herrin, Illinois

( STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

Pension
Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions

- Property taxes 5 776,024
' Plan member 277,368

Municipal contributions 144,802
‘ Total contributions 1,198,194

Investment income

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments 2,011,939
Gain (loss) on sale of investments (1,319,015)
Capital gains -
Dividends ' 192,045
) Interest 115,697
5 Net investment income (loss) 1,000,666
: Total additions 2,198,860
PEDUCTIONS
Benefits 2,091,904
Legal fees 13,463 .
Investment fees 36,677
Refund of contributions 3,049
Audit and actuarial fees 25,833
Other expenses : 11,726
Total deductions 2,182,652
Change in net position held in trust for pension benefits 16,208
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 46,401,431
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 46,417,639
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
24




City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2023

1 NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Reporting Entity

The City of Herrin, lllinois (the City) was incorporated April 17, 1900, The City operates as a home

rule municipality under a Mayor-Aldermanic form of government comprised of the Mayor and eight
e alderman, who are elected for four year terms, Other officers of the City include The City Clerk and
Treasurer who are elected for four year terms, Department Heads and related staff are appointed
by the Mayor with the consent of the City Council. The City’s major operations include police and
_ fire protection, development services, public works, water and sewer, library, civic center, and
1 general administrative services. The accounting policies of the City conform to United States
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments,

As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the government and its component units,
an entity for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. A blended
component unit, although legally a separate entity, is, in substance, a part of the government's
operations and so data from this unit is combined with data from the primary government. A
discretely presented component unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate column in the
combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the government.

The Herrin City Library is included in the City’s reporting entity as a discrete component unit. The
Mayor and Council have control over the Library Board. The City Council sets the annual tax levy
which is the major financing source of the Library.

The Herrin Civic Center is included in the City’s reporting entity as a discrete component unit. The
Mayor and Council have control over the Civic Center’s Board.

Complete financial statements for the discrete component unit may be obtained at the entity’s
administrative office.

City of Herrin, Illinois
hA 300 North Park Avenue
Herrin, lllinois 62948

As of April 30, 2023, the City did not have any biended component units.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) reportinformation on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City and its component unit.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
functional category are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable within a specific functional category. Program revenues include 1} charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given functional category and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular functional category. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. —

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied, Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues arerecognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City normally considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures, other than compensated
absences and principal and interest on long-term debt which are recorded when due, are recorded
when the related liahility is incurred.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and
contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance, There are,
however, essentially two types of these revenues. 1n one, monies must be expended for the specific
purpose or project befere any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized
based upon the expenditures recorded. Inthe other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose
of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeitures, and miscellaneous revenues
{except investment earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are
generally not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned since
they are measurable and available. See Note C for property tax accrual policy.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is used to account for all financial transactions which are not required to be
accounted forin another fund. Thisfund accounts for the general operating transactions of the City
including police and fire protection, street and equipment repairs and maintenance, cemeteries,
development services and administration.

The Tax Increment Fund #1 is used to account for the revenues and expenses associated with Tax
[ncrement Financing District #1.

The Grant Projects Fund is used to account for grants or similar revenue and the expenses on the
specific projects in accordance with the requirements of the associated grant agreements.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund is used to account for provision of water to the residents of the City. Activities
include administration, operations and maintenance of the water systems, and billing and
collection of charges.

The Sewer Fund is used to account for provision of sanitation services to the residents of the City.

Activities include administration, operations and maintenance of the sewer systems, and hilling
and collection of charges.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
major capital projects} that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent
on behalf of others, The following are the City's fiduciary fund types:

a. Pension Trust Funds are used to account for pension plans established by state and local
governments. The measurement focus is based on the flow of economic resources and the
accrual basis of accounting,.

i. The Eirefighter’s Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for
pension benefit payments to qualified firemen.

ii. The Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for
pension benefit payments to qualified policemen.

The City's fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type {pension
trust and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for benefit of a third party and
cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the City, these funds are not incorporated into
the government-wide statements. Separately issued financial statements of the pension funds may
be obtained from the City. '

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes or other charges
between the City’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government.
Eliminations of those charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.,

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicant for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues, Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2023

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

L Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services, rental charges and
fines. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

4, Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded inorder to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund.

5. Cashand Cash Equivalents

Except where otherwise required, the City maintains all deposits in various bank accounts in the
name of the City. These deposits are invested on a short-term basis with interest income being
allocated to the funds based on their respective balance. The City considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

6. Investments
Investments held by governmental funds are stated at fair value based upon quoted market prices.

Investments held by the fiduciary funds are managed as a single consolidated portfolio and entities
that transferred assets to the portfolio are considered Participant Members. Each Participant
Member owns a percentage of the overall pool, and their allocated fund is based on the initial in-
kind asset transfer and additionat cash contributions and withdrawals submitted to the fund.
Percentage ownerships for all Participant Member Funds are recalculated each time a contribution
or withdrawal is received and invested (or redeemed) from the consolidated portfolio. Income and
expense activity for each month is earned at the consolidated porifolio levet and is then allocated
to each member fund based on the weighted average of the percentage ownership during the
month, Participant Member Funds do not own the underlying assets in the consolidated portfolios,
but instead own a percentage of the overall Net Asset Value (NAV) of the consolidated fund.
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City of Herrin, ltlinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTEA | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
7. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of property taxes recorded in the government funds, and
charges for services accounted for in the enterprise funds. Charges for water services are accounted
for in the Water Fund, sewer setvices are accounted for in the Sewer Fund, and garbage services in
the General Fund. All receivables are recorded net of any allowances for doubtful accounts.

Credit is extended to utility customers on a partially-secured basis with a cash deposit required at
the inception of service, Property tax receivables are secured by a lien on the related real estate.
"Other receivables are generally unsecured.

8. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $10,000 or more and
an estimated useful life greater than one year. Such assets are recorded at cost or estimated
original cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.

Right-to-use leased assets are recorded at cost based on the present value of expected payments
over the lease term of the respective lease plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement of the lease term.

The costs of normal maintenance repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest costs are capitalized on capital assets of business-type activities as a component of
construction in progress, based on actual interest cost of the project, less interest income earned
on temporary investments of project funds. No interest expense or interest income was charged to
construction in progress in Fiscal Year 2023.

Property, plant, and equipment and right-to-use lease assets of the City, as well as its component

unit, are depreciated and amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
each asset.
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City of Herrin, linois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
8. Capital Assets

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 5-25 years
Buildings 5-50 years
Building Improvements 5-50 years
Equipment 3-20 years
infrastructure 10-50 years

9. Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid vacation and vested sick pay are accrued when incurred in the government-
wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported
in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations
and retirements.

10. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and the enterprise fund financial statements, long-
term debtand other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of applicable bond premiums or discounts.

In the fund financial statements long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund
when due or when resources have been accumulated in the Debt Service Fund for payment early in
the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from
expendable available financial resources is reported as a liability of a governmental fund.

11. Deferred Outflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The governmental funds
have no items that qualify for reporting in this category.
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NOTE A | SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
11. Deferred Outflows/inflows of Resources

~ In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources, This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not
be recognized as an inflow (revenue) until that time. The City has two types of items that qualify for
the reporting in this category. Accordingly, the items, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenue from
property taxes and lease revenue, in this category. These amounts are deferred and recognized as
an inflow of resources in the period that amounts become available.

12, Fund Equity and Net Position

The following classifications describe spending constraints placed on the purposes for which
resources can be used in the fund financial statements:

Nonspendable fund balance - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because
it is not in spendable form (such as inventory) or because of legal or contractual constraints.

Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government}, through constitutional provisions, or by
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using
its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level action to remove
or change the constraint.

Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for specific purposes; intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates
the authority. :

Unassigned fund balance - amounts available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported only
in the general fund.

The City Council establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of
an ordinance. Assigned fund balance is established by the City Council through adoption or
amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of capital assets,
construction, debt service, or for other purposes). Assigned fund balance can also be established
by the passage of a resolution, or by the city manager.
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12, Fund Equity and Net Position

The City uses restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available unless there are legal documents or contracts that prohibit doing this, such as
} a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use
J w committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when
expenditures are made. ’

The City does not have a formal stabilization policy or minimum fund balance policy.
The City reports three types of net position in its government-wide statement of net position:

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital asset balances less accumulated depreciation
and reduced by outstanding balances of debt used to acquire, construct, or improve those assets.

Restricted net position - net position is considered restricted if its use is constrained to a particular
purpose. Restrictions are imposed by external organizations such as creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted net position - consists of all other net position that does not meet the definitions of
the above two components and are available for the City’s general use.

13. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the general-purpose financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

14. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective for the year ending April 30, 2023, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, which

is intended to improve accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments to better meet

the information needs of financial statement users, The Statement increases the usefulness of

governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for

leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or

outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model

for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to

use an undertying asset. Information regarding The City’s leases is disclosed in Note G. Additionally,
the requirements of this statement resulted in the restatement of beginning net position, as

detailed in Note N.
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1. Deposits
Custodial Credit Ri

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the City's deposits
may not be returned to the City. Itisthe City’s policy for deposits to be secured by collateral valued
at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) insurance.

At year-end the carrying amount of the City's deposits totaled $14,936,414 and the bank balances
totaled $15,302,091. Of the bank balances, $1,058,473 were covered by federal depository
insurance, $14,043,619 were collateralized by U.S. Government securities held by the pledging
institution’s trust department in the City’s name, and $199,998 was uninsured/uncollateralized.

Reconciliation to Government-Wide Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,360,625
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7,370,529
Investments in certificates of deposit 1,205,260

5..14,936.414
Custodiat Credit Risk

Fiduciary Funds:

At year-end the carrying amount of the Fiduciary Fund’s deposits totaled $1,193,245 and the bank
balances totaled $1,187,793. Of the bank balances, $455,749 were covered by federal depository
insurance and $732,044 were uninsured/uncollateralized.

Component Unit:

At year-end the carrying amount of the City’s Component Unit deposits totaled $839,203 and the
bank balances totaled $860,098. Of the bank balances, $860,098 were covered by federal
depository insurance and $-0- were uninsured/uncollateralized.

Re iliation to Government-Wide Statement of Net Position:
Cash and cash equivalents S 355,945
Investments in certificates of deposit 483,258

§ 839203
34




City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTEB | DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
2. Investments
Police Pension Fund

The lllinois Police Officers’ Pension Investment Fund (IPOPIF} is an investment trust fund responsible
for the consolidation and fiduciary management of the pension assets of illinois suburban and
downstate police officer pension funds. IPOPIF was created by Public Act 101-0610, and codified
within the lllinois Pension Code to streamline investments and eliminate unnecessary and redundant
administrative costs, thereby ensuring assets are available to fund pension benefits for the
beneficiaries of the participating pension funds. Participation in IPOPIF by illinois suburban and
downstate police officer pension funds is mandatory. investments of the Fund are combined in a
commingled external investment pool and held by IPOPIF, A schedule of investment expenses is
included in IPOPIF’s annual report. For additional information on IPOPIF’s investments, please refer
to their annual report as of June 30, 2022. A copy of that report can be obtained from IPOPIF at 456
Fulton Street, Suite 402, Peoria, lllinois 61602 or at www.ipopif.org.

IPOPIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company but does operate in.a manner
consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in the Illinois Police
Officers’ Pension Investment Fund are valued at Illinois Fund’s share price, the price for which the
investments could be sold. IPOPIF acts as the investment custodian under the Treasury and Security
Division.

The Police Officers’ Pension Fund’s investment policy, in accordance with Illinois Statutes, establishes
a target allocation across asset classes. The target allocation table is available at www.ipopif.org.

Investment Policy: IPOPIF’s current investment policy was adopted by the Board of Trustees on
December 17,2021, revised April 14, 2023. IPOPIF is authorized to invest in all investments allowed by
iilinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). The IPOPIF shall not be subject to any of the limitations applicable
to investments of pension fund assets currently held by the transferor pension funds under Sections
1-113.1 through 1-113.12 or Article 4 of the Illinois Pension Code.

Investments: At year end, the Fund’s allocated value of investments with the illinois Police Officers’
Pension tnvestment Fund were $26,471,868 measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV) per share as
determined by the pool. The pooled investments consist of the investments as noted in the target
allocation table available at www.ipopif.org.
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2. Investments
Firefighters’ Pension Fund

The Illinois Firefighters’ Pension Investment Fund (IFPIF) is an investment trust fund responsible for
the consolidation and fiduciary management of the pension assets of ilinois suburban and downstate
firefighter pension funds. IFPIF was created by Public Act 101-0610, and codified within the tllinois
Pension Code to streamline investments and eliminate unnecessary and redundant administrative
costs, thereby ensuring assets are available to fund pension benefits for the beneficiaries of the
participating pension funds. Participation in IFPIF by Illinois suburban and downstate firefighter
pension funds is mandatory. Investments of the Fund are combined in a commingled external
investment pool and held by IFPIF. A schedule of investment expenses is included in IFPIF’s annual
report. For additional information on {FPIF’s investments, please refer to their annual report as of
June 30, 2022, A copy of that report can be obtained from IFPIF at 1919 South Highland Avenue,
Building A, Suite 237, Lombard, IL 60148 or at www.ifpif.org.

IFPIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company but does operate in a manner
consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in the Iilinois
Firefighters’ Pension Investment Fund are valued at lllinois Fund’s share price, the price for which the
investments could be sold. IFPIF acts as the investment custodian under the Treasury and Security
Division,

The Firefighters’ Pension Fund’s investment policy, in accordance with {llinois Statutes, establishes a
target allocation across asset classes. The target allocation table is available at www.ifpif.org.

Investment Policy: IFPIP’s current investment policy was adopted by the Board of Trustees on June
17, 2022, IFPIF is authorized to invest in all investments allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS).
The IFPIF shall not be subject to any of the limitations applicable to investments of pension fund
assets currently held by the transferor pension funds under Sections 1-113.1 through 1-113.12 or
Article 4 of the Illinois Pension Code. )

Investrments; At year end, the Fund’s allocated value of investments with the Illinois Firefighters’
Pension Investment Fund were $18,751,208 measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV) per share as
determined by the pool. The pooled investments consist of the investments as noted in the target
allocation table available at www.ifpif.org.
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3. FairValue

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value
measurements must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level1l Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
full term of the assets or liabilities

Level3 Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and that are significant
to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying financial
statements, as well as the general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the
valuation hierarchy.

Certificates of Deposit- Certificates of deposit are recorded at cost plus earnings which
approximates fair value.

Fair Value Measurements
The following tables present the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities recognized in the
accompanying financial statements measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within

the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at April 30, 2023:

[nput levels by investment category of the component unit’s financial instruments at April 30, 2023
are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment Category Fair Value Inputs Inputs Inputs
Certificates of Deposit 1) 483,258 § - S 483,258 § -
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3. FairValue

Input levels by investment category of the governmental activities financial instruments at April 30,
2023 are as follows:

_ Level1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment Category Fair Value inputs Inputs inputs
Certificates of Deposit S 1205260 % - 8. 1205260 § -

NOTE C | PROPERTY TAXES

Atax levy ordinance is prepared and adopted by the City Council and filed with the County Clerk on
or before the last Tuesday in December. The taxes upon real property, together with all penalties,
interest and costs that may accrue thereon, become a prior and first lien on such real property,
superior to all other liens and encumbrances, from and including the first day of January in the year
in which the taxes are levied until the taxes, penalties, interest and costs are repaid. Property taxes
are payable in two installments generally in August and October. The City receives significant
distributions of tax receipts approximately one month after these due dates.

Property taxes are recognized as revenue when they become available to finance expenditures.

This occurs when the taxes have been collected. Accordingly, assessed but uncollected taxes are
reported in the City's financial statements as receivables fully offset by deferred revenue accounts,
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NOTED | RESTRICTED ASSETS

Certain resources are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position and
governmental funds balance sheet because their use is limited to a specific purpose. A summary of
restricted assets at April 30, 2023 is as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Restricted Assets
Debt Service
Cash 1,254,020 - 1,254,020
Due from other funds - - -
Motor Fuel Tax
Cash 1,132,213 . 1,132,213
Due from other governments and agencies 43,884 - 43,884
Tax Increment
Cash 2,745,965 - 2,745,965
Due from other funds 427,152 - 427,152
Foreign Fire Insurance Board
Cash 30,580 - 30,580
Grant Projects
Cash 1,702,086 - 1,702,086
Housing
Cash 97,138 - 97,138
Water
Consumer Deposits - 408,527 408,527

S 7,433,038 S 408,527 S 7,841,565
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NOTE E | CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2023 for the primary government is as follows:

Balance Deductions Balance
April 30, and April 30,
2022 Additions Transfers 2023

Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land § 84907 § - $ . $ 84,907
Construction in Progress - - - - -

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 84,907 - - 84,907

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land Improvements 262,547 - - 262,547

Buildings 3,901,797 - - 3,801,797

Building Improvements 291,384 - - 291,384

: Equipment 5,780,887 470,231 (119,946) 6,131,172

i Infrastructure 8,157,185 - (122,032) 8,035,153
Right-to-use lease assets

Vehicles 62,355 41,675 - 104,030

Equipment - 127,465 - 127,465

Total capital assets, being
depreciated 18,456,155 639,371 {241,978} 18,853,548

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements (144,379} {11,793} - {156,172)
Buildings (3,651,230} {21,964) - (3,673,194}
Building improvements (158,242) {7,802) - (166,044)
Equipment (4,852,619) (244,090) 119,946 (4,976,763)
Infrastructure (2,619,934) {200,702) 122,032 (2,698,604)
Right-to-use lease assets

Vehicles {32,080} {19,417) - (51,497}

Equipment - (6,373) - {6,373}
Total accumulated depreciation {11,458,484) {512,141) 241,978 (11,728,647}

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 6,997,671 127,230 - 7,124,901

Governmental activities ‘;
capital assets, net $7,0825718 § 127,230 § - $ 7,209,808
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Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2023 for the business-type activities Is as follows:

Balance Deductions Balance
April 30, and April 30,
2022 Additions Transfers 2023
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 40,000 $ - $ - $ 40,000
Contruction in Progress - - - -
Totai capital assets, not being
depreciated 40,000 - - 40,000
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 10,884,423 - - 10,884,423
Building Improvements 36,386 - - 36,386
Equipment 1,299,935 - - 1,299,935
Infrastructure 22,031,326 - - 22,031,326
Right-to-use lease assets
Vehicles 68,497 - - 68,497
Equipment 156,745 - - 156,745
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 34,477,312 - - 34,477,312
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (7,635,755} (137,494) - (7,773,249)
Building Improvements {19,261} {1,662} - {20,923)
Equipment (1,126,370} (32,944} - {1,159,314)
Infrastructure {6,982,733) (558,758} - {7,541,491)
Right-to-use lease assets
Vehicles {27,449) (11,764} - {39,213}
Equipment {47,183} (22,392} - {69,575)
Total accumulated depreciation {15,838,751) {765,014) - {16,603,765)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 18,638,561 {765,014) - 17,873,547
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 18678561 $ (765014) § - $ 17,913,547
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Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2023 for the component units’ is as follows:

Balance Deductions Balance
April 30, and April 30,
2022 Additions Transfers 2023
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 49833 § - S - $ 49,833
Contruction in progress - - - -
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 49,833 - - 49,833
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land Improvements 13,095 - - 13,095
Buildings 1,253,444 - - 1,253,444
Building Improvements 256,122 23,520 - 279,642
Equipment 694,050 828 - 694,878
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 2,216,711 24,348 - 2,241,059
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements {13,005} - - (13,005)
Buildings (638,198} (31,336) - (669,534)
Building improvements (170,975} (13,918) - {184,893)
Equipment (683,015) (4,530) - (687,545)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,505,283} (49,784) - (1,555,067)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 711,428 (25,436) - 685,992
Component units
capital assets, net $ 761,261 § (25438) § - $ 735825
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities;

General Government $ 29,071
Public Safety 165,656
Public works 317.414
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 512,141

Business-type activities:

Waterworks $ 361,169
Sewerage 403,845
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities § 765,014

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the component unit as follows:

Component unit activities:

Public Library § 32,696
Civic Center 17,088
Total depreciation expense — component unit activities S 49,784
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NOTE F | LONG-TERM DEBT AND DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
eral Obligation Bonds - Gov e ctivities
General obligation bonds payable at April 30, 2023 are comprised of the foltowing:

Governmental Activites

$25,195,000 general obligation bonds dated April 1,2022 due

annually from December 1, 2022 through

December 1, 2040 installments of $755,000 to $1,820,000.

Interest is payable each June 1 and December 1 beginning

December 1, 2022 with interest at 1.48% to 4.20%. $ 24,440,000

$1,920,000 general obligation bonds dated September 29, 2021

due annually from December 1, 2011 through

December 1, 2027 installments of $10,000 to $365,000.

Interest is payable each June 1 and December 1 beginning

June 1, 2022 with interest at 3%. 1,585,000

$210,000 general obligation bonds dated September 29,2021

due annually from December 1, 2021 through

December 1,2028 installments of $20,000 to $135,000.

Interestis payable each June 1 and December 1 beginning

June 1, 2022 with interest at 1% to 3%. 165,000

$2,020,000 general obligation bonds dated September 29, 2021

due annually from December 1, 2021 through

December 1, 2032 installments of $70,000 to $255,000.

Interest is payable each June 1 and December 1 beginning

June 1, 2022 with interest at 3%. - 1,835,000
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Governmental Activites

$1,155,000 general obligation bonds dated April 5,

2016 due annually from December 1, 2016 through

December 1, 2035 installments of $45,000 to $85,000.

Interestis payable each June 1 and December 1 beginning

June 1, 2016 with interest at 1.35% to 4.5%. 820,000

$565,000 general obligation bonds dated May 22, 2017
due annually from December 1, 2018 through

December 1, 2025 installments of $55,000 to $80,000.
Interestis payabte each June 1 and December 1 beginning

December 1, 2018 with interest at 1.75% to 3%. 230,000
. 29,075,000

Remaining unamortized discount on bond issuance {271,229)

Remaining unamortized premium on bond issuance 350,077

$ 29,153,848

$25,195,000in general obligation bonds issued on April 1, 2022 were used to (i) fund a portion of the
unfunded liabilities of the City’s Police Plan and Fire Plan and (ii) pay costs associated with the
issuance of the Bonds.

$1,920,000 in general obligation refunding bonds, series 2021A issued on September 29, 2021 were
used to refund $2,006,255 of the City’s general obligation bonds dated September 28, 2011 and
October 11, 2017 and pay issuance costs associated with the issuance of the bonds.

$210,000 in general obligation refunding bonds, series 2021B issued on September 29, 2021 were
used to refund $199,904 of the City’s general obligation bonds dated December 4, 2009 and pay
issuance costs associated with the issuance of the bonds.

$2,020,000 in general obligation refunding bonds, series 2021C issued on September 29, 2021 were

used to refund $2,184,759 of the City’s capital lease for the Johnson Control Project dated
December 29,2017 and pay issuance costs associated with the issuance of the bonds.
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Governmental Activities

$1,155,000 in general obligation bonds issued on April 5, 2016 were used for the wastewater
collection system improvements and the construction of the Beltz and Vet Lift Station and force
main project costs.

$565,000 in general obligation refunding bonds issued on May 22, 2017 were used to finance water
system projects including waterline replacement projects,

The City of Herrin is a "Home Rule" unit as established by the 1970 Illinois Constitution. Asa Home
Rule Community, no statutory debt limit exists.

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds outstanding as of April 30, 2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30, Principal Interest
2024 1,590,000 1,015,417
2025 1,700,000 977,205
2026 1,750,000 932,777
2027 1,725,000 877,127
2028 1,595,000 815,775
2029-2033 7,745,000 3,322,283
2034-2038 7,725,000 1,830,984
2039-2041 5,245,000 394,405

$ 29,075,000 $ 10,225,973

1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt Notes Payable

The City has financed certain capital expenditures through bank borrowings and other loan
agreements at April 30, 2023 as follows:

All the governmental activity notes payable were used in the acquisition of equipment and vehicles
for use by the City.

Term bank toans, duein monthly installments for an annual
amount of $24,051; term of the loans varies through May 2033;
interest rates range from 3.24% to 4.33%. S 205,846

S 205,846
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1. Governmental Activity Long-Term Debt Notes Payable

The annual requirements to amortize all governmental activity long-term debt notes payable as of
April 30, 2023 are as follows:

Year
Ending
April 30,

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029-2033
2034-2038

Principal
15,528
16,214
16,930
17,678
18,459

105,268

15,769

$ 205,846

Interest
8,523
7,838
7,121
6,374
5,593

14,989
200

$ 50,638

Long-term liability activity for the year ended April 30, 2023, was as follows:

Govemmental activities

General obligation bonds

Bond premium

Bond discount

Notes payable

Leases

Compensated absences

Net pension liability (asset)

Government activity
Long-term liabilities

Balance Balance Due
April 30, April 30, Within
2022 Additions Reductions 2023 OneYear
$ 30,415,000 $ - $ (1,340,000) $ 29,075,000 § 1,590,000
404,646 . {54,569) 350,077 54,569
(278,763) 1534 (271,229) (15,068}
242,087 (36,241) 205,846 15,528
57,083 169,140 (25,074} 197,149 21,299
786,251 454,654 {398,951) 841,954 -
{1,397,658) 5,433,449 - 4,035,791 .
$ 30,228,646 $ 6,057,243 $ (1,851,301) $ 34,434,588 $ 1,672,328
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2. Business-Type Activity

Long-term liability activity for the year ended April 30, 2023, was as follows:

Balance Balance Due
April 30, April 30, within
Business-type activities 2022 Additions Reductions 2023 One Year
Leases $ 126,730 $ - - $  (43,000) $ 83640 S 44347
Compensated absences 206,247 228,262 {206,247) 228,262 -
Net pension liability (asset) (484,992} 1,258,231 - 773,239 -
Business-type activity
Long-term liabilities $ (152,015} $ 1,486,493 $ (249,337) $ 1,085,141 S 44,347

Compensated absences and the net pension liability for the business type activities are liquidated
by the general fund.

NOTE G | LEASES

1. LesseeArrangements - Governmental activities

The City has entered into various leases for vehicles and equipment with remaining lease terms
ranging from three to 10 years. All leases are comprised of fixed lease payments.

The City has financed certain capital expenditures through lease financing arrangements at April
30, 2023 as follows:

Governmental activities
Leases, due in monthly and semiannual installments
for an annual amount of $25,874; term of the leases varies

through October 2023; interest rates range from 3.35% to 4.75%. $ 197,149

§ 197,149
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1. Lessee Arrangements - Governmental activities

The annual requirements to amortize all governmental activity leases as of April 30, 2023 are as

follows:
Year
Ending
April 30, Principal Interest
2024 27,299 6,578
2025 28,258 5,620
2026 29,251 4,626
2027 26,146 3,619
2028 19,469 2,776
2028-2033 66,726 6,127

$197,149 $29,346

2. Lessee Arrangements - Business-type activities

The City has entered into various leases for vehicles and equipment with remaining lease terms
ranging from less than 2 to 3 years. All leases are comprised of fixed lease payments.

The City has financed certain capital expenditures through lease financing arrangements at April
30, 2023 as follows:

Lease, due in monthly installments of
approximately $1,618 through November 15, 2024,
The lease bears an interest rate of 3.75%. 5 28,280

Lease, due in monthly installments of
approximately $1,245 through January 13,2025.
The lease bears an interest rate of 3.45%. 24,050

Lease, due in monthly installments of

approximately $1,016 through January 7, 2026.
The lease bears an interest rate of 2,.76%. 31,310
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NOTE G | LEASES
2. Lessee Arrangements - Business-type activities

All the business-type activity leases were used in the acquisition of equipment for the use of the

City.

The annual requirements to amortize all business-type activity capital leases as of April 30, 2023 are

as follows:
Year Ending
April 30, Principal Interest
2024 44,347 2,194
2025 . 31,294 726
2026 7,999 89

) 83,640 $ 3,009

3. LessorArrangements

The City leases buildings, towers and land through its governmental funds and water tower space
through proprietary funds to third parties. These agreements have terms ranging from 5 to 32
years. Payments are generally fixed monthly amounts with certain annual increases included in
the measurement of the lease receivable. At April 30, 2023, the City recognized $83,708 in lease
revenue, including interest.

NOTE H | RETIREMENT PLANS

The employees of the City of Herrin are covered by one of the following defined benefit pension
plans: the Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund {IMRF), the Police Pension Plan, or the Firefighter's
Pension Plan. The Police Pension and Firefighter's Pension Plans are single-employer plans and are
accounted for as pension trust funds in the City's financial statements. The Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund is a multiple-employer agent PERS (Public Employee Retirement System). The
lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund is not included in the balances shown in the financiat
statements, except for the contributions made during the year and charged to operating
expenditures or expenses, City contributions to these pension plans are funded with property taxes,
replacement taxes and general operating revenues. '
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Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund

[MRF Plan Descriptjon

The City’s defined benefit pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability
benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The
employer plan is managed by the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), the administrator ofa
multi-employer public pension fund. A summary of IMRF’s pension benefits is provided in the
“Benefits Provided” section of this document. Details of all benefits are available from IMRF. Benefit
provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State
of Hllinois. IMRF issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes
financial statements, detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and
required supplementary information. The report is available for download at www.imrf.org.

ene rovid

IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the Regular Plan
(RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnet (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and
selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials
elected prior to August 8, 2011 {the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date).

All three IMRF benefit plans have two tiers, Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for
Tier 1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years
of qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age
60 (at full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of
service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their
final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48
months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by
3% of the original amount on January 1 every year after retirement.
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Regular Personnel (Non-SLEP)

uarjal Assu ions
Portfolio Long-Term
, Target Expected Real
Asset Class Percentage Rate of Return
Equities 35.5% 6.50%
International Equities 18.0% 7.60%
Fixed income 25.5% 4,90%
Real Estate 10.5% 6.20%
Alternative Investments 9.5% 6.25-9.90%
Cash Equivalents 1.0% 4.00%
Total 100%
Single Discount Rate

A single Discount Rate of 7.25% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of
cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments {during the period in
which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. Thetax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds
with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the
measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with long-term expected
rate of return are not met}.

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan investments is
7.25%, the municipal bond rate is 4,05%, and the resulting single discount rate is 7.25%.
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Regular Personnel (Non-SLEP)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
. (A) (8) (A)- (B)
Balances at December 31,2021 $ 17106795 § 18540480 § (1,433,685}
Changes for the year: ‘
Service Cost 287,602 - 287,602
¢ Interest on the Total Pension
: Liability 1,215281 - 1,215,281
Changes of Benefit Terms - - -
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience of the
Total Pension Liability . 102,295 - 102,295
Changes of Assumptions - ' - -
Contributions - Employer - 350,084 (350,084)
Contributions - Employees “ 147,096 {147,096)
Net Investment Income - (2,355,755) 2,355,755
Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee
Contributions (976,205) (976,205) -
Other (Net Transfer) - (222,505) 222,905
Net Changes 628,973 (3,057,685) 3,686,658
Balances at December 31,2022 $  17,735768 § 15482795 $ 2,252,973
’ Primary government 5 2,157,951
Component unit _ 95,022
Net pension liability $ 2,252,973

Plan fidudary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 87.30%

f Covered Valuation payroll $ 3,268,801

Net pension liability as a percentage
of covered valuation payroll 68.92%
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Regular Personnel (Non-SLEP)
Sensitivity o et Pension Liability t es in the Discount Rate

The foltowing presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of
7.25%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single
Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease = Rate Assumption 1% increase

6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Total Pension Liability $ 20,113,342 § 17,735,768 § 15,869,722
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 15,482,795 15,482,795 15,482,785
Net Pension Liability 5 4,630,547 §$ 2,252,973 $ 386,937
Net Pension Liability - Primary Government  $ 4,435,250 $ 2,157,952 § 370,618
Net Pension Liability - Component Unit 195,297 95,021 16,319
Net Pension Liability $ 4,630,547 § 2,252973 § 386,937
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Regular Personnel (Non-SLEP)

ension Expe Deferred Qutflow of Resources, and Deferred Inflow of Resources Relate

Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $342,652. At April 30,
2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions Resources Resources
Primary Component Primary = Component
Government unit Total overnment Unit Total
Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in
Pension Expense in Future Periods
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 149235 § 6,571 5§ 155,808 {278,5544) § (12,265} $ (290,309)
Changes of assumptions 47,677 2,099 49,776 {(115,534) (5,088) {120,622}
Net difference between projected and
actual earning on pension plan investments 1,209,552 53,260 1,262 812 - - -
Total Deferred Amounts to be recognized in
pension expense in future periods 1,406,464 61,930 1,468,394 {394,078} {17,353) {411,431}
Pension Contributions made subsequent
to the Measurement Date B7,333 3,847 91,180 - -
Total Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions § 1493797 § 65777 § 1559574 (394,078) § f{17353) § {411431)
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Regular Personnel (Non-SLEP)

sion Expense, Deferred Outflow of Resources, and Deferred Inf sources Relate
Pensions

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Year Ending Net Deferred Inflows
December 31, of Resources
Primary Component
Government Unit Total
2023 §  (134,368) §  (5917) §  (140,285)
2024 122,264 5,384 127,648
2025 387,197 17,050 404,247
2026 717,442 31,591 749,033
2027 7,184 316 7,500
Thereafter o - - -
Total $ 1099719 § 48424 § 1,148,143
Sheriff’s Law Enforcement (SLEP)

B it Te

As of December 31, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

IMRF
Retirees and Beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1
Inactive Plan Members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0
Active Plan Members 0
' Total 1
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Sheriff's Law Enforcement (SLEF)

Contributions

As set by statute, the City’s SLEP Plan Members are required to contribute 7.25% of their annual
D covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to
member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The City’s annual
N contribution rate for calendar year 2022 was 12.43%. For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023, the
L City contributed $10,387 to the plan. TheCity also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits,
and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates
for disability and death benefits are set by IMRF’s Board of Trustees, white the supplemental
retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Net Pension Lijability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2022. The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at
December 31, 2022:

The Actuarial Cost Method used was Aggregate Entry Age Normal.

The Asset Valuation Method used was 5 year smoothed market, 20% corridor.

The Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.5%

Salary Increases were expected to be 2.85% to 13.75%, including inflation.

¢ The Investment Rate of Return was 7.25%

e Projected Retirement Age was from the Experience-based table of rates that are specific
to the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2020 valuation pursuant to an
experience study of the period 2017-2019.

e Mortality '

- For Non-Disabled Retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income,

[ General, Retiree, Male (adjusted 106%) and Female {adjusted 105%) tables, and future
mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020.

- For Disabled Retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income,
General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future
mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2020.,
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Sheriff's Law Enforcement (SLEF)

Actuarial Assumptions

- For Active Members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income,
General, Employee, Male and Female {both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality
improvements projected using scale MP-2020.

Portfolio Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Percentage Rate of Return
Equities 35.5% 6.50%
International Equities 18.0% 7.60%
Fixed Income 25.5% 4.90%
Real Estate 10.5% 6.20%
Alternative Investments 9.5% 6.25-9.90%
Cash Equivalents _1.0% 4.00%

Total 100%

Single Discount Rate

A single Discount Rate of 7.25% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of
cash flow used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that the plan members’
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate, and that employer contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate, The Single Discount Rate reflects:

1. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (during the period in
which the fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits), and

2. The tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds
with an average AA credit rating (which is published by the Federal Reserve) as of the
measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use with long-term expected
rate of return are not met).

For the purpose of the most recent valuation, the expected rate of return on plan investments is
7.25%, the municipal bond rate is 4.05%, and the resulting single discount rate is 7.25%.
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Sheriff’s Law Enforcement (SLEP)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary  Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liabitity
(A) (B) (A}- (B)
Balances at December 31, 2021 § 561,690 $ 619,149 § (57,459)
Changes for the year:
Service Cost - - -
interest on the Total Pension
Liability 39,151 - 39,151
Changes of Benefit Terms - - -
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience of the
Total Pension Liability 4,265 - 4,265
Changes of Assumptions - - -
Contributions - Empioyer - 11,850 (11,850)
Contributions - Employees - - -
Net Investment Income - (97,624) 97,624
Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee
Contributions (43,347) {43,347} -
Other {Net Transfer) - 1,572 {1,572)
Net Changes 69 (127,549) 127,618
Balances at December 31, 2022 ) 561,759 § 491,600 § 70,159
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability 87.51%
Covered Valuation payroll $ -
Net pension liability as a percentage
of covered valuation payroll 0.00%
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Sheriff’s Law Enforcement (SLEP)

itivity of the Net Pensi iabili anges jn the Discount Rate

The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of
7.25%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single
Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

Current Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Total Pension Liability 5 616,170 $ 561,759 § 515,031
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 491,600 491,600 451,600
Net Pension Liability $ 124,570 § 70,159 § 23,431
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Sheriff's Law Enforcement (SLEP)

ension Expense, Deferr tflows of Resources, a fer lows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended April 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $7,460. At April 30, 2023,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outftows of  Inflows of
Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions Resources Resources
Deferred Amounts to be Recognized in
Pension Expense in Future Periods
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ - $ -
Changes of assumptions - ' -
Net difference between projected and
actual earning on pension plan investments 50,134 -
Total Deferred Amounts to be recognized in
pension expense in future periods 50,134 -
Pension Contributions made subsequent
to the Measurement Date 2,487 -
Total Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions S 52,621 § -
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Sheriff's Law Enforcement (SLEP)

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
ensions '

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Year Ending Net Deferred Cutflows

December 31, of Resources
2023 5 117
2024 8,217
2025 15,003
2026 28,284
2027 -

Thereafter -

Total 5 52,621

Firefighters’ Pension Fund

Plan Description

The Planis a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all sworn fire personnel. The
Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries.
The defined benefits and the employee and employer contribution levels are governed by Illinois
State Statutes, Chapter 40 5/4, Article 4, and may be amended only by the illinois legislature. The
City accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund.

Membership of the plan consisted of the following at April 30, 2023 the date of the latest actuarial

valuation:
Active members 17
Retirees and beneficiaries 13

Inactive, non-retiring members

Total

Lok L

Participating employers
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Firefighters’ Pension Fund

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended
by the State legislature. Plan members are required to contribute 9.455% of their base salary to the
Firefighter’s Pension Plan, If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of
service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The
City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. Administrative costs of the plan are financed through
investment earnings.

Benefit Provisions
Tier | - Membership started prior to January 1, 2011

A firefighter age 50 or more with 20 years or more of creditable service who is no longer in service
as a firefighter, shall receive 50% of the greater of the annual salary held in the year preceding
retirement or the annual salary held on the last day of service. The annual pension shall be
increased by 2%:% of such annual salary for each additional year of service from 20 years of service
to 30 years of service, up to a maximum of 75%.

A firefighter who is separated from service having between 10 and 20 years of creditable service,
who is not entitled to receive a disability pension, and who did not apply for a refund of
contributions at separation of service, shall receive an annual pension upon attainment of age 60
based on the monthly salary attached to rank in the fire services on the date of retirement or
separation of service according to the following years of service: for 10 years, 15%; for 11 years,
17.6%; for 12 years, 20.4%, for 13 years, 23.4%; for 14 years, 26.6%; for 15 years, 30%; for 16 years,
33.6%; for 17 years, 37.4%; for 18 years, 41,4%,; for 19 years, 45.6% of salary.

The annual pension of a firefighter retired from service with 20 or more years of creditable service
shall increase annualtly, 3% of the original pension amount after the attainment of age 55 for each
year elapsed since retirement, followed by an additional 3% of the amount of pension payable at
the time of increase on each January 1 thereafter,

Tier Il - Membership started after December 31,2010
A firefighter age 55 or more with 10 years of creditable service who is no longer in service as a
firefighter, shall receive 22% of the final average salary for each year of service. The final average

salary is defined as the average salary based on the highest consecutive 48 months of the final 60
months of service.
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Firefighters’ Pension Fund
B it Provisigns

A firefighter who is separated from service having between 10 and 20 years of creditable service,
who is not entitled to receive a disability pension, and who did not apply for a refund of
contributions at separation of service, shall receive an annual pension upon attainment of age 60
based on the monthly salary attached to rank in the fire services on the date of retirement or
separation of service according to the following years of service: for 10 years, 15%; for 11 years,
17.6%; for 12 years, 20.4%, for 13 years, 23.4%; for 14 years, 26.6%; for 15 years, 30%; for 16 years,
33.6%; for 17 years, 37.4%); for 18 years, 41.4%; for 19 years, 45.6% of salary.

Early retirement is offered for firefighters at age 50 or greater with 10 or more creditable years of
service, but with a penalty of 2% for each month that the firefighters’ age is between 50 and 55.

The annual pension of a firefighter retired from service with 20 or more years of creditable service
shall increase annually by the lessor of % of the Consumer Price Index - all urban consumers (CPI-
U) or 3% increase of the original pension amount after attainment of age 60, followed by an
additional increase of the lessor of ¥z of the CPI-U or 3% of the original pension amount on each
January 1 thereafter.

The Plan also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by state statute.

Members that terminate their participation may withdraw their contributions and forfeit future
benefits.

Net Pension Liabili

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of April 30, 2023. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.
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Firefighters’ Pension Fund

Actuarial Assumptions

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at April 30,
2023:

o The Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal.

» The Asset Valuation Method used was 5 year smoothed fair value,

» The Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.25%

» Payroll Increases were graded by years of service from 3.50% to 8.76%

» The Investment Rate of Return was 6.50%

* Mortality: Pub-2010 Adjusted for Plan Status, Demographic, and Illineis Public Pension
Data, as Described

A complete detailed description of the actuarial assumptions and methods can be found in the May 1,
2023 actuariat valuation report.

Single Discount Rate

A single Discount Rate of 6.50% was used to measure the total pension liability. Projected benefit
payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial present values using a single discount rate
that reflects:

1. A long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that the
plan’s net fiduciary position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) and
2. A tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds

with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the extent that the plan’s
projected fiduciary position is insufficient to pay benefits).

For the purposes of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.50%;
the municipal bond rate is 3.53%; and the resulting single discount rate is 6.50%.
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Firefighters’ Pension Fund

Single Discount Rate

Expected contributions are developed based on the following:
e Employee contributions for current participants
» Normal cost contributions for current participants
» Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) contributions for current and future participants
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Firefighters’ Pension Fund

C es i et ion Liabili
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
{A) (B) (A)-(B)
Balances at April 30, 2022 $ 19,002,644 § 19,400,408 $ {397,764)
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 355,624 - 355,624
interest on the Total Pension
Liahility 1,238,907 - 1,238,907
Changes of Benefit Terms (19,398) - {19,398)
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience of the
Total Pension Liability 532,654 - 532,654
Changes of Assumptions (2,031) - {2,031)
Contributions - Employer - 393,047 (393,047)
Contributions - Employees : - 130,605 (130,605)
Net Investment income - 14,124 {14,124)
Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee .
Contributions (947,424) (947,424} -
Other (Net Transfer) - (28,353) 28,853
Met Changes 1,158,332 (438,501) 1,596,833
Balances at April 30,2023 $ 20,160,976 % 18,961,907 § 1,199,069

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability

Covered Valuation payroll

Net pension liability as a percentage

of covered valuation payroll
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Police Pension Fund

Fundi olic

The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended
by the State legislature. Plan members are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the
. _ Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of service,
| accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated interest. The City is
- required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. Administrative costs of the plan are financed through
investment earnings.

Benefit Provisions

Tier | - Membership started prior to January 1, 2011

A police officer age 50 or more with 20 years or more of creditable service who isno longer in service
as a police officer, shall receive 50% of the greater of the annual salary held in the year preceding
retirement or the annual salary held on the last day of service. The annual pension shall be
increased by 2% of such annual salary for each additional year of service from 20 years of service
to 30 years of service, up to a maximum of 25%.

A police officer who is separated from service having between 8 and 20 years of creditable service,
who is not entitled to receive a disability pension, and who did not apply for a refund of
contributions at separation of service, shall receive an annual pension upon attainment of age 60
in the amount of 2¥2% of the annuat salary held in the year preceding termination times the number
of years of creditable service or 2¥2% of the annual salary held on the last day of service times the
number of years of creditable service, whichever is greater.

The annual pension of a police officer retired from service with 20 or more years of creditable service
shall increase annually, 3% of the original pension amount after the attainment of age 55 for each
year elapsed since retirement, followed by an additional 3% of the amount of pension payable at
the time of increase on each January 1 thereafter,

Tier Il - Membership started after December 31, 2010

A police officer age 55 or more with 10 years of creditable service who is no longer in service as a
police officer, shall receive 212% of the final average salary for each year of service. The final average
salary is defined as the average salary based on the highest consecutive 96 months of the final 120
months of service.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2023

NOTE H | RETIREMENT PLANS
Police Pension Fund

A police officer who is separated from service having between 8 and 20 years of creditable service,
who is not entitled to receive a disability pension, and who did not apply for a refund of
contributions at separation of service, shall receive an annual pension upon attainment of age 60
in the amount of 2%2% of the annual salary held in the year preceding termination times the number
of years of creditable service or 2142% of the annual salary held on the last day of service times the
number of years of creditable service, whichever is greater.

Early retirement is offered for police officers at age 50 or greater with 10 or more creditable years of
service, but with a penalty of 2% for each month prior to age 55.

The annual pension of a police officer retired from service with 20 or more years of creditable service
shall increase annually by the lessor of % of the Consumer Price index - all urban consumers (CPI-
U) or 3% increase of the original pension amount after attainment of age 60, followed by an
additional increase of the lessor of ¥z of the CPi-U or 3% of the original pension amount on each
January 1 thereafter,

The Plan also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by state statute.

Members that terminate their participation may withdraw their contributions and forfeit future
benefits.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liabitity was measured as of April 30, 2023. The total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

ctuari i

The following are the methods and assumptions used to determine total pension liability at April
30, 2023:

e The Actuarial Cost Method used was Entry Age Normal.

s The Asset Valuation Method used was 5 year smoothed fair value,

o The Inflation Rate was assumed to be 2.5%

= Payroll Increases were graded by years of service from 3.50% to 11.00%

¢ The investment Rate of Return was 6.50%

» Mortality: PubS-2010, unadjusted, with generational improvements with most recent
projection scale MP-2021.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2023

NOTEH I RETIREMENT PLANS
Police Pension Fund

A complete detailed description of the actuarial assumptions and methods can be found inthe May 1,
2023 actuarial valuation report.

Single Discount Rate

A single Discount Rate of 6.50% was used to measure the total pension liability.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE H | RETIREMENT PLANS

Police Pension Fund

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(&) (B) {A)-(B)
Balances at April 30,2022 S 26,940,387 § 27,001,022 § (60,635)
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 456,673 - 456,673
interest on the Total Penslon
Liability 1,743,514 - 1,743,514
Changes of Benefit Terms - - -
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience of the
Total Pension Liability 699,736 - 699,736
Changes of Assumptions - - -
Contributions - Employer - 382,977 (382,977)
Contributions - Employees - 146,763 (146,763)
Contributions - Buy Back 144,802 144,802 -
Net Investment Income - 949,684 (949,684)
Benefit Payments, including
Refunds of Employee
Contributions {1,147,530) {1,147,530) -
Other (Net Transfer) ' - {21,987) 21,987
Net Changes 1,897,195 454,709 1,442 486
Balances at April 30,2023 $ 28,837,582 § 27,455,731 § 1,381,851
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 95.21%
Covered Valuation payroll $ 1,480,959
Net pension liability as a percentage
of covered valuation payroll 93.31%
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE H | RETIREMENT PLANS
Police Pension Fund
Sensitivity of the ion Liability to Changes i iscount Rate
The following presents the plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a Single Discount Rate of
6.5%, as well as what the plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a Single

Discount Rate that is 1% lower or 1% higher:

Current Single Discount

1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase
5.50% 6.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 5,863,993 S 1,381,851 $ (2,213,103)
Pension Expense Outflows of Resources erred inflows of Re es Related to

Pensions
For the year ended April 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $(507,361). At April 30,

2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred Aggregate

Outflowsof  inflows of Deferred
Deferred Amounts Related to Pensions Resources  Resources  Resources
Deferred Amounts to be Recoghized in
Pension Expense in Future Periods
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 599,772 § (495,055) § 104,717
Changes of assumptions - - -
Net difference between projected and
actual earning on pension ptan investments 1,845,131 - 1,845,131
Total Deferred Amounts to be recognized in
pension expense in future periods § 2,444,903 § (495,055) S 1,949,848
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTEH | RETIREMENT PLANS
Police Pension Fund

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Year Ending Net Deferred Outflows
April 30, of Resources

2024 ) 563,375
2025 563,375
2026 . 563,375
2027 158,810
2028 951
Thereafter 99,962
Total $ 1,949,848
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City of Herrin, Illinois

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2023

NOTE 1 | INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The following is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables at April 30, 2023:

Fund

Governmental Funds
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Tax Increment Fund #1
Tax Increment Fund #3
Tax Increment Fund #4

Total Governmental
Enterprise Funds:

Water Fund
Sewer Fund

Total Enterprise Funds

Total All Funds

Interfund Interfund
Receiv 5 Payables
$ 90,786 -
427,152 -
- 2,000
- 27,000
517,938 29,000
- 203,329
112,543 398,152
112,543 601,481
$ 630,481 $ 630,481

Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2} transactions are recorded in the accounting

system, and (3) payment between funds are made.

Interfund balances are not expected to be repaid within one year.
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City of Herrin, llinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE | | INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

|
:

The following is a schedule of operating transfers as included in the Statement of Activities of the

_‘ TransfersIn  Transfers Qut
Major Funds:
General Fund $ 738,626 § 2,467,764
Debt Service Fund 2,483,364
Water Fund - 253,200
Sewer Fund - 470,400
Total Major Funds 3,221,990 3,191,364

Non-major Funds;

Motor Fuel Tax Fund S - S 30,626
Total Non-major - 30,626
Total Transfers All Funds $ 3221990 S 3,221,990

Transfers are used to {1) move revenues from the funds that statute or budget requires to collect
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them or (2) use unrestricted revenues
collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2023

NOTE J | EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS
The City only files a formal budget for the General, Water, Sewer and Library. Excess of expenditures

over appropriations in individual funds for the year ended April 30, 2023 are as follows and include
those funds that do not have a formal budget:

Fund Expenditures Budget

Formal Budget Ordinance

General § 9639022 § 8828760
Water $ 2914735 § 2,607,470
Sewer § 1,391,901 § 1,149,600
Library ) 375,063 $ 346,583
Funds not Formally Budgeted
TIF#1 S 1605578  NotApplicable
Debt Service S 2,402,749  NotApplicable
Motor Fuel Tax $ 367,096 WNotApplicable
TIF#2 S 186,033  NotApplicable
TIF#3 $ 2,554  NotApplicable
TIF#4 5 27,688  NotApplicable
Foreign Fire Insurance Board $ 32,943  NotApplicable
Grant Projects 5 41,815  NotApplicable
Housing S 508,762  NotApplicable
Civic Center S 220134  NotApplicable

NOTE K | FUND DEFICITS

Tax Increment Fund #4 and Housing Fund had a deficit fund balance of ($188) and ($22,770) as of
April 30,2023.
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City of Herrin, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE L | RESERVES OF RETAINED EARNINGS AND FUND BALANCES

The financial statements include restricted fund balances for the following funds as of April 30,
2023:

Governmental Activities

Restricted Fund Balances

Debt Service $ 847,388
Motor Fuel Tax 1,140,178
Tax Increment Financing 2,870,861
Foreign Fire Insurance Board 30,580
Housing (22,770)
State Loans 1,905

$ 4,868,142

Proprietary and fiduciary activities:

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds include a number of reserves, which are maintained for
specific purposes. The nature and purpose of the significant reserves are:

e for Emplo ' Pension Benefits

The Police and Firefighter’s Pension Trust Funds are single-employer, defined benefits pension
plans. As a result, the net position is reserved for employees’ pension benefits.

NOTEM | RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage‘to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.

There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and settlements have not
exceeded coverage in the past three years.
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City of Herrin, illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30,2023

NOTE N | PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Gov nt Wide Financial Statements

The City adopted GASB Statement No. 87, leases which requires retrospective application for prior
years by restating financial statements for all periods presented. The restatement as of April 30,
2022 was $92,787 to governmental activities and $17, 927 to business-type activities to refiect lease
receivables and the associated deferred inflows for leases in place at that time at their net present
value.

NOTE O | SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Management evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after April 30, 2023 through

November 20, 2023 the issue date of these financial statements. No subsequent events were
identified.
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City of Herrtn, Illinois
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MULTIYEAR SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Calendar Years
IMRF - Regular Plan
Calendar Year Actuarialiy Contribution Covered Actual Contribution
Ending petermined Actual Deficlency valuation ase%of

December 31, Contrlbution Contribution {Excess] Payrelt Covered Yaluation Payroll

2022 $ 324592 * § 350,084 $ {25492} § 3,268,801 10.71%
021 $ 373,172 § 421453 % {ag281) 3,009,429 13.60%
2020 § 406,344 § 408,843 % (2499) % 2,994,427 13.65%
2019 1 kN S 313,71 % - $ 2,528,868 11.09%
2018 $ 344926 $ 3449271 § m s 2,677,334 12.88%
2017 $ 378,800 § 385351 (6551) 2,808,008 13.72%
2016 $ 383,507 § 448,162 % {64,655 § 2,826,136 15.86%
2015 1 1636 § 341,635 % 1 4 2,549,519 13.40%

*Estimated based an contribution rate of 9.83% and covered valuation payroil of $3,260,001.

IMR¥ - SLEP Plan

Calendar Year Actuarially Contribution Lovered Actual Contribution
Ending Dretermined Actual Deficiency Valuation asa%of
December 31, Contributian Contribution {Excess) Payroll Covered Valuation Payroll

2022 [ - s 11,850 § {10,850} § - -
2021 5 . 'S 32,684 $ {32,684} § - -
2020 $ - $ 40526 § (40526} § - -
2019 [ - 1 4T 5 {4,772} § - -
2018 $ - 5 493,347 & {49,947} § - -
2017 5 - H LEN /i B {44,729) § - -
2016 $ - $ 28935 § {28,935) § B -
2015 $ - 5 w0t § {29,201} § - -

*Estimated based on contrbution rate of 12.43% and covered valuation payrall of $0

Motes to Schedule:
Summiary Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used in the Calculation of the 2022 Contrlbution Rate**

Valuation Date:
Notes Actiralally determined contribution rates are calcutated as of December 31 each year, which are 12
manths prior to the beginning of the fiscal year in which contributions are reparted.

52
Actuarial Cost Method: Aggregate entry age normal
Amortization Method: Level percentage of payroli, clased
Remaining Amortization Perlad: Non-Taxing bodies: 10-year relling perlod

Taxing bodles (Regutar, SLEP and ECO groups): 21-year closed period

Early Retirernent Incentive Plan llabilities: a perlod up to 10 vears selected by the Emplayer upon
adoption of ER:, .

SLEP supplemental Kabilities alributable to Public Act 94-712 were financed over 16 years for mast
employers {five employers were financed over 17 years; one employer was financed over 18 years;

bwo employers were linanced over 19 years; one employer was financed cver 20 years; three employers
were financed aver 25 years; four employers were financed over 26 years and ane emplayer was financed

over 27 years},
Asset Valuation Method: S.year smoathed market; 20% corridor
Wage Growth: 2.15%
Price Inflatfon: 225%
Salary Increases: 2.85% to 13.75% including inflation
Investment Rate of Retum: T.25%
Retirement Age: Experlence-based table of rates that are specific to the type bf efigibility condition. Last updated far the

2020 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the perlod 2017 - 2018,

Mortality: For non-disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Retiree, Male
(adjusted 106%) and Female (adjusted 105%} tables, and future martality improvements projected using scale
MP-2020, For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Welghted, below-mediau income, General, Disabled Retlree,
Mafe and Femate {both unadjsinted) tables, and frture maortality improvements projected using scate MP-1010. For
active members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Employee, Male and Female
{both unadjusted} tables, and future mortatity Improvements projected using scale MP-2020.

Other Infarmatien:
Nates There were no benefit changes during the year.

** Based on Valuation Assumptions used In the December 31, 2020 actuana{ valuation

This schedule is presented to jllustrate the requirement to showr information for 10 years, However, until a full 10-year trend |s compiled,
Information is presenteg for those years for which information is available.

(see independent auditors' report)
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City of Herrin, lllinols

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MULTIYEAR SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fireflghter's Pension Plan

calendar Year Actuarially Contribution Covered Actual Contribution
Ending Determined Actuat Deflciency Valuatlon as a % of
April30, Cantribution Contribution {Excess) Payroll Covered Valuwatlan Payroli
2003 $ 393,47 § 393,047 % - § 1,399,867 2B.08%
2022 I3 973818 % 9,790,573 § (8,816,754 § 1,146,639 B53,85%
2011 $ al3ced  § 013,664 § - $ 1,110,546 82.27%
2020 L 120011 § 752414 % (32,401} § 1,106,370 6B.01%
2019 I3 720083 § 720,013 § - $ 1,094,374 B5.76%
2018 $ 720013 § 720,013 % - $ 1,148,608 62.69%
2017 § 491083 & 600,000 § {102,147} § 1,081,165 55.50%
2016 % 514465 % GO0S00 & (86,035 § 1,044,142 57.51%
Notes to Schedule:

The Actuarially Determined Contribution shown above far the current year is the Recommended Cantribition from the May 1, 2022
Actuarlal Valuation completed by Foster & Foster for the December 2022 tax levy, if applicable. The methods and assumptions shown
below are based on the same Actuarial Valuation, For more detail on the age-based and service-based rates disclosed below, please

see the Actuarlal Valuation,

Actuarial Cost Method:

Amartization Method:

Equivalent Single Amortization Perfod
Asset Valuation Method:

Iaflatlon:

Total Payrofl Increases:

Salary Increases:

Investment Rate of Return:

Mortality:

Retirement Rates:
Termination Rates:
Disability Rates:

Aggrepate entry age nommal

Level percentage of payrot, closed

100% funded over 15 years, layered

S-year smonthed fair value

2.25%

3.25%

3.50% to 8.76% including tnflation

6.50%

Pub5-2010 Adjnsted for Plan Status, Demographles, and lllinois Pubdic Pensien Data, as
Described,

10{% of L&A 2020 [llinols Flrefighters Retirement Rates Capped at Age 65
100% of L&A 2024 lllinois Firellghters TermInatlon Rates

1009% of L&A 2024 llinois Firelghters Disability Rates

Pollce Pansion Plan

Calendar Year Actuarially
Endng Determined
April 30, Contributien
2023 $ 382,977
2022 4 1,453,639
2021 $ 1,364,625

Notes to Schedule:

Actvarial Cost Method:

Amortization Method:

Equivalent Single Amortization Perlod
Asset Valuation Method:

Inflation:

Tolal Payroll increases:

Salary Increases:

thvestment Rate of Return:

Mortality:

Retirement Rates:
Termination Rates:
Disability Rates:

Other information:
Notes

Contributlon Covered Actual Contribution
Actual Deficlency Valuation asa%of
Contributlon [Excass) Payroll Covered Valuat(on Payrokl
§ ELFETE S - $ 1,460,959 25.06%
$ 17200872 § (15747,233) § 1,205,729 1426,60%
5 1366408 5 {1,784y § 1,204,601 112.43%

Aggregate entry age normal

Level percentage of payrofi, closed

100% funded over 20 years

S-year smoothed falrvalue

2.50%

45056

3.50% to 11.00% Including inflaticn

6.50%

PubS-2010 Employee mortality, unadjusted, with generational improvements with most

recent prajection scale {currently Scale MP-2021),

Based on a 2022 experience study performed for the llinois Pollce Officers’ Pensian investment Fund.
Based on a 2022 experlence study performed for the Hlinos Police Officers’ Pension Investment Fund,
Based on a 2022 experience study performed for the [linols Police Officers' Pension Investment Fund,

There were no benefit changes during the year.

This schedule |s presented to iustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years, Hawever, until a full 10-year trend is compiled,
Information is presented for those years for which Information Is available,

{see independent auditors’ report)
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City of Herrin, lllinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISCN STATEMENT
GENERAL FUND

For the year ended April 30,2023

£ Budgeted Amounts Variance
bl Original Final Actual Under/{Over}
s REVENUES
Property tax § 2,430,947 $ 2,430,947 § 2,391,037 $  (39,910)
Intergovernmental revenue 6,987,700 6,987,700 7,555,948 568,248
Licenses, & permits 300,300 300,300 298,373 {1,927)
Fines and fees 70,000 70,000 302,791 232,791
Charges for services 1,275,500 1,275,500 1,329,543 54,043
Interest income - - 34,871 34,871
Miscellaneous income 59,000 59,000 1,329,575 1,270,575
) Total revenues 11,123,447 11,123,447 13,242,138 2,118,691
EXPENDITURES
General government and administrative 2,463,450 2,463,450 2,442 947 20,503
- Public safety 4,583,200 4,583,200 4,857,946 (274,746)
Transportation and public works 1,642,300 1,642,300 1,787,430 {145,130)
Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 470,231 {455,231)
Debt service ‘
Principal 124,810 124,810 65,315 59,495
Interest - - 15,153 {15,153}
Total expenditures 8,828,760 8,828,760 9,639,022 {810,262)
Excess {Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 2,294,687 2,294,687 3,603,116 1,308,429
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
i3 Transfersin 80,000 80,000 738,626 658,626
, Transfers out (2,467,187) {2,467,187) (2,467,764) 577
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,387,187} {2,387,187) {1,729,138) 659,203
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {92,500) (92,500} 1,873,978 1,967,632
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS ORIGINALLY STATED 4,964,979
i PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 67,787
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 5,032,766
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 6,906,744

(see independent auditors’ report)
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Clty of Herrin, Illinels

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
GENERAL FUND

For the year ended April 30, 2023

Budgeted Amounts over/
Original Final Actual {Under)
REVENUES
Property tax
{ Property tax $ 2,430,947 $ 2,430,947 $ 2,391,037 $ {39,910}
Totai property tax 2,430,947 2,430,947 2,391,037 (39,910
Sales, service, and utility taxes
i3 Sales tax 2,010,400 2,010,400 2,118,801 108,401
Home rule tax 1,805,000 1,805,000 1,941,711 136,711
¥ Gas tax 217,200 217,200 214,965 {2,235)
Telecommunication tax 106,800 106,800 101,641 [5,159)
Income tax 1,736,200 1,736,200 1,925,018 188,818
Replacement tax 133,000 133,000 231,190 98,150
Use tax 476,000 476,000 506,502 30,502
Gaming tax 316,000 316,000 320,059 13,059
Auto rental tax 100 100 29 {71}
1 Cannabis use tax 15,000 15,000 16,032 a2
H 911 Grant 168,000 168,000 168,000 -
: Total sales, service, and utility taxes 6,987,700 6,987,700 7,555,948 568,248
Licenses and permits
Cable TV fees 73,000 73,000 63,034 {9,966)
Liguor license fees 45,000 45,000 52,969 7,969
ameren franchise fees 117,000 117,000 116,825 {175)
Misc licenses 8,300 8,300 12,930 4,630
3 Building permits 5,000 5,000 3,590 (1,410
Occupancy permits 15,000 15,000 15,075 75
Property owners permits 35,000 35,000 31,550 [3,450)
Goif cart license 2,000 2,000 2,400 400
I Totat license and permits 300,300 300,300 298,373 {1,927)
; Fines fees
¥ Fines from Williamson County 70,000 70,000 98,063 18,063
Mise police fines and fees . - 214,728 214,728
Total fines and fees 70,000 70,000 302,791 232,791
Charges for setvices
Garbage fees/collections 1,172,000 1,172,000 1,166,503 (5,097)
Excavations 25,000 25,000 20,600 {4,400}
Animal contro} 4,500 4,500 4,975 475
Misc. police 16,000 16,000 64,163 48,163
Misc. fire 2,000 2,000 18,896 16,896
Landlfill transfer station 56,000 56,000 54,006 (1,994)
Total charges for services 1,275,500 1,275,500 1,329,543 54,043
Interest income .
Interest - - 34,871 34,871
Total Interest income - - 34,871 34,871
. Miscellaneous income
Rents 46,100 46,100 43,864 {2,236)
Fublic hearing ads 400 400 250 {150}
i Tile and culvert 11,000 11,000 7,052 {3,248)
Relmbursement of police overtime 24,000 24,000 18,471 {5,529)
insurance reimbursement - - 2,638 2,638
Sale of property 13,000 13,000 1,227,554 1,214,594
: Trafiic signal reimbursement 20,000 20,000 12,598 {7,402)
Opiods settlement revenue - - 28,356 28,356
Donatlon reimbursement - - 2,500 2,500
Rallroad revenue 12,000 12,000 - {12,000)
Road maintenance reimbursement MFT (80,000} (80,000) {69,954} 10,046
] Police equipment revenue - - 33,506 33,505
Miscellaneous 12,500 12,500 22,700 10,200
Total miscellaneous income 59,000 59,000 1,329,575 1,270,575
' g Total revenues $ 11,123,447 § 11,123,447 $ 13,242,138 § 2,118,691
(see independent auditors’ report)
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City of Herrin, illinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT

GENERAL FUND
For the year ended April 30, 2023

Budgeted Amounts [Over)/
. Original Final Actual Under
EXPENDITURES
General government and administrative
Salary of elected officials $ 147,500 147,500 166,358 (18,858)
~ Salary of budget officers 110,800 110,800 112,864 (2,064)
Salary of clerical personnel 38,700 38,700 38,697 3
Salary of janitor 12,200 12,200 12,081 119
Salary of animal controf 59,200 59,200 61,807 (2,607)
Group health 750,000 750,000 601,799 148,201
Workman's compensation insurance 115,700 115,700 115,358 302
Clty 457 expense 1,200 1,200 1,200 -
Fica city contribution 230,000 230,000 242,548 {12,548)
IMRF city cantribution © 265,000 265,000 201,094 63,906
Expenses by elected officials 32,000 32,000 26,363 5,637
Office suppliesfequipment 15,000 15,000 10,317 4,683
Printing and postage 3,700 3,700 3,014 686
Telephone/communications/computer 3,600 3,600 1,344 2,256
Maintenance of huilding 25,000 25,000 35,005 {10,005}
Computer maintenance/supplies 9,500 9,500 30,323 {20,823)
Utilities 33,000 33,000 25,721 7,279
Liabitity Insurance 106,700 106,700 106,625 75
Unemployment compensation 10,100 10,100 10,044 56
Civic Centerexpense 90,000 90,000 142,327 {52,327)
Animal control expense 30,000 30,000 32,265 {2,265)
Pubilc notice ads 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Demolition expenses 15,000 15,000 5,946 9,054
Paying Agent Bond Fees - - 500 (500)
Engineer’s fees 7,000 7,000 9,426 (2,426)
Audit expense 34,350 34,350 39,025 {4,675)
Copy machine expense 4,200 4,200 3,368 332
Legal services 40,000 40,000 25,949 14,051
Misc expenses 22,500 22,500 14,082 8,418
Redco 40,000 40,000 40,000 -
Greater Egypt 3,200 3,200 3,335 (135)
Library share of replacement 600 600 600 -
New equipment/assets 10,000 10,000 9,107 893
Energy sales tax 18,000 18,000 13,213 4,787
Library special jevies 52,000 52,000 52,000 -
5ales tax contingency 85,500 85,500 118,501 {33,401)
Grand administration fees 40,000 40,000 - 40,000
Clothing animal control 1,200 1,200 133 1,067
Employee health insurance benefit - - 896 (896}
Payroll tax - - 17,494 {17,494}
Pension bond reserves expenses - - 29 (29)
SIEG pass through account expenses - - 111,249 {111,249)
Total general government and administrative 2,463,450 2,463,450 2,442 947 20,503

(see independent auditors' report)
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City of Herrin, illinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
GENERAL FUND

For the year ended April 30, 2023

Public safety

Police

Salary full time police
Salary full time dispatcher
Salary part time police
Salary part time dispatcher
Dispatcher court and overtime
Police court and overtime
City 457 expense

Uniform allowance
Supplies/office/postage
Gas/oil
Telephone/communicationsfcomputer
Vehicle maint

Radio maintenance
Buitding maintenance
Utilities

Unreimbursed liability
Training police

Service agreements

Misc expenses

Leads terminal

New equipment/fcars/bldg
K-9 expenses

Police equipment fund

IT expenses

HPD towing expense

Total police

Budgeted Amounts {Over)/

Original Final Actual Under
1,451,000 1,451,000 1,511,275 {60,275)
572,000 572,000 628,640 {56,640)
63,500 63,500 73,445 {9,945)
110,000 110,000 93,218 16,782
40,000 40,000 32,232 7,768
165,000 165,000 134,546 30,454
34,800 34,800 36,450 {1,650}
25,400 25,400 26,885 (1,485)
20,000 20,000 16,625 3,375
67,000 67,000 82,372 {15,372}
15,600 15,600 17,178 (1,578)
21,400 21,400 21,300 {500}
8,500 B,500 6,000 2,500
15,000 15,000 11,001 3,999
13,000 13,000 10,236 2,764
3,000 3,000 2,842 158
35,000 35,000 34,975 25
15,000 15,000 17,564 (2,564)
5,200 5,200 4,394 806
14,000 14,000 11,508 2,492
10,000 10,000 14,476 {4,476)
- - 1,888 (1,888)
. - 14,645 {14,645)
46,000 46,000 45,071 929
- - 52,960 {52,960)
2,750,400 2,750,400 2,902,326 (151,926)

(see independent auditors ' report)
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City of Herrin, llinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT

GENERAL FUND
For the year ended April 30, 2023

Fire

Salary fult time firemen

Salary codesinspector

Call back pay

Overtime full time firemen

City 457 expense

Uniform allowance

Station supplies

Office supplies/fequipment

Fire prevention

Volunteer fire expense
Telephone/communications/computer
Radio maintenance
Maintenance of building

Misc equipment/new equipment
Fuel/fequipment maintenance
Utilities

Unreimbursed liability
Training/schools

General misc expenses

Misc expenses of codes inspector
SCBA

Fire station expenses

Leased equipment

Civil defense public warning system
EMS Supplies

Total fire

Total pubtic safety

Transportation and public works
Streets and alleys

Salary street and alley

Overtime

City 457 expense

Clothing allowance
Supplies/office/postage

Gas & oil

Street and alley materials

Street signs

Traffic signals
Telephone/communications/computer
Building maintenance

Street maintenance

Utilities

Unreimbursed lability

Misc expenses of street and alley
Customer tilefculvert

Training

Total streets and alieys

Garbage
Salary - garbage
Overtime

Total garbage

Budgeted Amounts (Over)}
Original Final Actual Under
1,330,000 1,330,000 1,372,671 {42,671}

53,950 53,950 46,376 7,074
72,000 72,000 90,362 {18,362)
142,000 142,000 167,785 {25,785)
18,000 18,000 18,250 {250}
16,650 16,650 17,946 {1,296)

5,600 5,600 6,578 {978)

3,000 3,000 4,549 {1,549)

1,500 1,500 1,241 259

5,500 5,500 5,484 16

9,300 9,300 6,977 2,323

6,500 6,500 6,480 20

8,500 B,500 8,205 295

40,000 40,000 63,272 (23,272}
45,000 45,000 59,866 (14,866}
18,000 18,000 16,498 1,502
1,000 1,000 1,537 {537}
15,000 15,000 24,248 {9,248}
10,000 10,000 10,516 {516}
7,000 1,000 4,747 2,253
14,200 14,200 14,100 100

- - 29 (29}

2,500 2,500 2,276 224

5,000 5,000 34 4,966

2,600 2,600 5,093 (2,493)
1,832,800 1,832,800 1,955,620 (122,820)
4,583,200 4,583,200 4,857,946 {274,746}

680,000 680,000 699,829 {19,823)

8,000 8,000 5,004 2,996

22,300 22,800 22,800 -

13,600 13,600 19,253 {5,653)
65,000 65,000 80,754 (15,754)
20,000 20,000 22,608 {2,608)
4,500 4,500 2,189 2,311

20,000 20,000 45,850 {25,850)
4,500 4,500 4,429 Tt
4,300 4,300 7,483 {3,183}
25,000 25,000 26,399 {1,399)
90,000 90,000 107,641 {17,641)
2,500 2,500 1,035 1,465
65,000 65,000 73,627 {8,627)
11,000 11,000 6,230 4,770
4,000 4,000 - 4,000
1,040,200 1,040,200 1,125,131 {84,931)
127,000 127,000 201,378 {74,378)
11,000 11,000 15,774 (4,774)
138,000 138,000 217,152 {79,152}

(see independent auditors' report)
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City of Herrin, Itlinois
BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT

GENERAL FUND
. For the year ended April 30, 2023
|
i Budgeted Amounts {Over)}
Original Final Actual Under
Transportation and public works
Landfill
Landfill analysis & reporting 35,000 35,000 . 28,955 6,045
Garbage dumping fees 145,000 145,000 127,048 17,952
Landfill closure 35,000 35,000 26,036 8,064
Total landfill 215,000 215,000 - 182,039 32,961
Cemetery
Salarjes cematery 55,100 55,100 60,351 {5,251)
Overtime 4,100 4,100 B75 3,225
Clothing allowance 800 800 1,000 {200}
Supplies/office/postage L,100 1,100 1,747 (647)
' Building maintenance 1,000 1,000 1,274 | (274)
' Vehicle/equipment maint 8,100 8,100 3,059 5,041
Utilitles 3,500 3,500 1,852 1,648
New equipment 16,000 16,000 - 14,843 1,157
Total cemetery 88,700 89,700 85,001 4.699
Clty garage
Salary mechanic 59,200 59,200 59,561 (361)
Overtime 1,500 1,500 1,858 {358)
Garage supplies 25,000 25,000 24,234 T 766
Telephonefcommunications/cemputer 3,700 3,700 2,927 773
Vehicle maint 70,000 70,000 89,527 {19,527)
Total city garage 159,400 159,400 178,107 {18,707)
Total transportatfon and public works 1,642,300 1,642,300 1,787,430 (145,130)
Capital outlay .
Capital outlay 15,000 15,000 470,231 {455,231)
Total capital outlay 15,000 15,000 470,231 {455,231)
Debt service
Principat - 124,810 124,810 65,315 59,495
Interest - - 15,153 {15,153}
Total debt service 124,810 124,810 80,468 44,342
Total expenditures 8,828,760 8,828,760 9,638,022 (810,262}
Excess {Deficiency) of revenues over expendlitures 2,294,687 2,294,687 3,603,116 1,308,429
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers In 80,000 80,000 738,626 658,626
Transfers out (2,467,187} (2,467,187} {2,467,764) 577
Total other financing sources {uses} (2,387,187} {2,387,187} {1,729,138) £59,203
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (92,500} {92,500} 1,873,978 1,967,632
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS ORIGINALLY STATED 4,964,979
: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 67,787
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 5,032,766
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 3 6,906,744
(see independent auditors' report)
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City of Herrin, lllinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
TAX INCREMENT FUND i1

For the Year ended April 30, 2023

REVENUES
Property tax
Interest income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Community development

Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

Budgeted Amounts Variance

Original Final Actual Under/{Over)

- 5 - $ 1,661,510 $ (1,661,510

- - 28,997 {28,997

- - 1,690,507 {1,650,507)

- - 1,605,578 {1,605,578)

. - 1,605,578 (1,605,578}

- - 84,929 (84,929)

. - 84,929 {84,929}
1,515,671
$ 1,600,600

{see independent auditors’ report)
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City of Herrin, Hlinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
GRANT PROJECTS FUND

For the year ended April 30, 2023

REVENUES
Property tax
Intetest income
Miscellaneousincome

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
General government and administrative
Transportatlon and public works
Total expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues cver expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total financing sources (uses}
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS
ORIGINALLY STATED
PRICR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Original Final Actual Under/(Over)
- s - $ - $ -
- - 1,905 (1,905)
- - 41,815 {41,815)
. - 43,720 {43,720)
. - 30 {30)
- - 41,785 {41,785)
- - 41,815 {41,815)
- - 1,905 {1,905)
- - 1,905 (1,905)
{25,000)
25,000
3 1,905

(see independent auditors’ report)
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City of Herrin, llinois

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
WATER FUND

For the fiscal year ended April 30,2023

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Original Final Actual Under/{Over}
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services § 2,860,670 $ 2,860,670 $ 2,815,234 $ 45,436
Total operating revenues 2,860,670 2,860,670 2,815,234 45,436
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries 808,100 808,100 831,738 {23,638)
Employee benefits 240,700 240,700 223,561 17,139
Purchase of water 1,020,000 1,020,000 1,000,166 19,834
Audit 17,175 17,175 14,600 2,575
Utilitles 13,700 13,700 18,461 {4,761)
Postage 36,500 36,500 39,636 {3,136)
Insurance 64,700 64,700 64,514 186
Health insurance claims 156,000 156,000 122,582 33,418
Offlce supplies 12,200 12,200 5,707 6,493
Legal and engineering 5,000 5,000 8,978 {3,978}
Supplies 115,000 115,000 137,588 {22,588)
Ciothing allowance 10,300 10,300 11,948 (1,648)
Other 105,095 105,095 68,639 36,456
Repair and maintenance 3,000 3,000 1,997 1,003
Depreciation - - 361,169 (361,169}
Total operating expenses 2,607,470 2,607,470 2,911,284 {303,814}
Operating income {loss} 253,200 253,200 {96,050} 349,250
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income - - 30,781 (30,781}
Interest expense - - {3,451) 3,451
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses} - - 27,330 {27,330)
TRANSFERS
Transferin - - - -
Transfer out {253,200) {253,200} {253,200) -
Totai transfers in {(out) {253,200) {253,200) {253,200} -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION - - (321,920) 321,520
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS ORIGINALLY STATED 8,537,042
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 17,927
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR - AS RESTATED 8,554,969

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

(see independent auditors' report)
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P City of Herrin, Illinois

L BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT
SEWER FUND

For the Fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

. Budgeted Amounts Variance
[ Original Final Actual Under/{Over}
i OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,632,000 $ 1,632,000 $ 1,576,600 $ 55,400
Total operating revenues 1,632,000 1,632,000 1,576,600 55,400
OPERATING EXPENSES
- Salarjes 305,000 305,000 336,393 {31,393)
N Employee benefits 155,835 155,835 145,809 10,026
! Utilities 103,500 103,500 102,476 1,024
Insurance 33,200 33,200 32,930 270
Legal and engineering 7,500 7,500 11,517 {4,017)
Permits 17,500 17,500 17,500 -
Supplies 42,500 42,500 53,423 {10,923)
Clothing allowance " 4,000 4,000 4,972 (972)
other 179,825 179,825 37,249 142,576
Repair and maintenance 300,740 300,740 245,787 54,953
Depreciation - - 403,845 {403,845)
Total operating expenses 1,149,600 1,149,600 1,391,901 (242,301}
Operating iIncome {loss} ' 482,400 482,400 184,699 297,701
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income “ - 13,387 {13,387)
Tota! nonoperating revenues {expenses) - - 13,387 {13,387)
TRANSFERS
Transfer in - - - -
Transfer out {470,400) (470,400) {470,400} -
Total transfers in (out} {470,400) (470,400) (470,400) -
CHANGE [N NET POSITION 12,000 12,000 (272,314) 284,314
FUMND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,278,359
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 11,006,045

(see independent auditors’ report)
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City of Herrin, Ifinois
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

April 30,2023
Firemen's Police
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Cash § 205749 $ 987,496 $ 1,193,245
Receivables
Property taxes - - -
Employee contributions receivable 4,950 - 4,950
Accrued interest - - -
Total receivables 210,699 987,496 1,198,195
investments, at fair value
lllinois Pelice Officers Pension Investment Funds, pooled - 26,471,868 26,471,868
lilinois Firefighters Pension Investment Funds, pooted 18,751,208 - 18,751,208
Total investments 18,751,208 26,471,868 45,223,076
Total assets § 18,961,907 $ 27,459,364 § 46,421,271
LIABILITIES
Federal witholding S - 5 3,468 4 3,468
Due to City of Herrin - 164 164
Total current liabilities - 3,632 3,632
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows - property taxes - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - -
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 18,961,907 $ 27,455732 $ 46,417,639
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City of Herrin, illinois

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Property taxes
Plan member
Municipal contributions

Total contributions

Investmentincome
Net appreciation (depreciation} in fair value of investments
Gain {loss) on sale of investments
Capital gains
Dividends
Interest

Net investment income (loss)
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benelfits
Legal fees
Investment fees
Refund of Contributions
Audit and actuarial fees
Other expenses
Total deductions
Change in net position held in trust for pension benefits

" NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET PCSITION, END OF YEAR
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Firemen's Police
Pension Pension

Fund Fund Totals
$ 393,047 5 382,977 $ 776,024
130,605 146,763 277,368
- 144,802 144,802
523,652 674,542 1,198,194
469,803 1,542,136 2,011,939
(610,061} (708,954) {1,319,015}
106,512 85,533 192,045
71,995 43,702 115,697
38,249 962,417 1,000,666
561,901 1,636,959 2,198,860
947,424 1,144,480 2,091,904
5,250 8,213 13,463
24,124 12,553 36,677
- 3,049 3,049
14,645 11,188 29,833
8,959 2,767 11,726
1,000,402 1,182,250 2,182,652
(438,501) 454,709 16,208
19,400,408 | 27,001,023 46,401,431
$ 18,961,907 S 27,455,732 $ 46,417,639
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City of Herrin, Illinois

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - ACCRUAL BASIS

COMPONENT UNITS
April 30,2023
Component Units
City Civic
Library Center Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASASETS
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 236,863 $ 119,082 355,945
Investments 417,434 65,824 483,258
Accounts recelvable
Property taxes 237,700 - 237,700
Other - - -
Total current assets 891,997 184,906 1,076,903
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Net pehsion asset - - -
Capital assets, net 597,337 138,488 735,825
Total noncurrent assets 597,337 138,488 735,825
Total assets 1,489,334 323,394 1,812,728
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows - IMRF regular 65,777 - 65,777
Total deferred outflows of resources 65,777 - 65,777
Total assets and deferred ocutflows of resources 5 1,555,111 $ 323,394 1,878,505
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2,116 $ 10,966 13,082
Accrued expenses 2,206 1,499 3,705
Total current liabilities 4,322 12,465 16,787
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension iiability 95,021 - 95,021
Total noncurrent liabilities 95,021 - 95,021
Total liabilities 99,343 12,465 111,808
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred inflows - IMRF regular 17,353 - 17,353
Total deferred inflows of resources 17,353 - 17,353
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $ 116,696 $ 12,465 129,161
NET POSITION
Net investment in capltal assets $ 597,337 $ 138,488 735,825
Unrestricted 841,078 172,441 1,013,519
Total net poslition $ 1,438,415 $ 310,529 1,749,344
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City of Herrin, [linois

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - ACCRUAL BASIS

COMPONENT UNITS
For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2023

REVENUES
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
Fees and fines
Interest income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENSES
Culture and recreation

Total expenses

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues over expenses
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transferin
Transfer out
Total other financing sources (uses)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

Component Units

City Civic
Library Center Total

S 236,807 S - 236,807
70,819 142,327 213,146
8,068 - 8,068
5,463 © 443 5,906
14,846 123,501 138,347
336,003 266,271 602,274
375,063 220,134 595,197
375,063 220,134 595,197
(39,060} 46,137 7,077
(39,060} 46,137 7.077
1,477,475 264,792 1,742,267
§ 1,438,415 § 310,929 1,749,344
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(View)|420-00-1758 [Site o o0 of o]
Improvements:

(View) | 420-00-2433 | Local 0| 141,928 0| 141,928
‘ ' Coronavirus ,

Urgent |
Remediation
Emergency (or
Local CURE) &
ECohemic
Stpport
Payments
Grants
Program
420-75-0070 | Community 0 274,078 0| 274,078
' Development.
Block
Granfs/State's
program and
Non-
Entitlement
Grants in
Hawail

iew | | 420-75-1633 cOmmunlty 234,684 0 0 234,684
Development
Block Grant
Housing
Rehabilitation
Program

(View) | 494-00-0967 | HighsGrowth 0 0 o] o
S . Cities Program
494-00-1488 | Motor Fuel Tax | 696,605 0 0| 696,605
Program | -

Totals: | 931,289 | 569,070 | 15,650,375 | 17,150,734
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494-00-2356

Local REBUILD

ILLNOIS Bond

| Program

494-42-0495

Local Surface
Transportation

| Program.

532-60-3017

Lead Service
Line Inventory

Grant Program |

546-00-2094

Edward Byrne
| Memorial

Justice

Assistance

Grant Program.
(JAG)

111,249

111,249

Other grant
programs and
activities

41,815

41,815 |;

All other costs
no’g ;allqcat_ed

15,650,375

15,650,375
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Totals:

7 & Please note the following:
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funding.

+ All other expenditures not related to grants are to be entered in "All other costs

not allocated™.
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931,289

569,070

15,650,375

17,150,734 |5
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« The CYEFR may be: pre-populated with programs hased on existing awards in the
GATA system. These programs cannot be removed. If no spending occurred in a
program leave the amounts at zero,

» Any-grant eXpenditures not associated with funding received through the State of
Illincis are to be entered in "Other grant programs and activities”, The
expenditures must be identified as federal (direct or pass-through) or other
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City of Herrin, Illinois
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the fiscal year ended April 30,2023

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

2022-01 -~ Audit Journal Entries and Year-End-Close - repeated in 2023 as finding 2023-01

2022-02 - Segregation of Duties - repeated in 2023 as finding 2023-02
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